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HTTP://GRANTS.NIH.GOV/GRANTS/FUNDING/SBIR ANNOUNCEMENTS.HTM

APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS

SF424 (R&R) APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS AND ELECTRONIC SUBMISSION INFORMATION
(HTTP://[GRANTS.NIH.GOV/GRANTS/FUNDING/424/INDEX.HTM)
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APPENDICES

STTR MODEL AGREEMENT (MS WORD)

EXTRAMURAL INVENTION REPORTING COMPLIANCE RESPONSIBILTIES (HTTPS://S-
EDISON.INFO.NIH.GOV/IEDISON/TIMELINE.JSP)
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PROGRAM DESCRIPTIONS AND RESEARCH GRANT TOPICS

The research topics shown in this solicitation represent program areas that may be of interest to applicant
small business concerns in the development of projects that have potential for commercialization. Small
business concerns are encouraged to submit SBIR/STTR grant applications in these areas.

APPLICABLE TO NIH ONLY: SBIR and STTR grant applications will be accepted and considered in any area within the
mission of the awarding components (i.e., Institutes and Centers (ICs)) identified in this solicitation.

Applicants are strongly encouraged to subscribe to the NIH Guide for Grants and Contracts LISTSERV
(http://grants.nih.gov/grants/quide/listserv.htm) or query program administrators periodically via email to
learn of new or emerging scientific interests of the NIH, CDC, FDA, and ACF awarding components.

You may also subscribe to the SBIR-STTR LISTSERYV list to get timely information about the NIH
SBIR/STTR Programs (http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/listserv.htm).

Additional information on each of the awarding components (ICs) and their research interests is available
electronically on the home pages shown throughout the “Research Topics” section of the solicitation.

The Fogarty International Center, which provides support only for conferences, postdoctoral fellowships
for research in the United States and abroad, and senior scientist exchanges between the United States
and other countries, does not participate in the SBIR/STTR program.

NATIONAL INSTITUTES OF HEALTH (NIH)

NIH is the steward of medical and behavioral research for the Nation. Its mission is science in pursuit of
fundamental knowledge about the nature and behavior of living systems and the application of that
knowledge to enhance health, lengthen life, and reduce the burdens of illness and disability.

The goals of the agency are as follows:

1. to foster fundamental creative discoveries, innovative research strategies, and their applications
as a basis for ultimately protecting and improving health;

2. to develop, maintain, and renew scientific human and physical resources that will assure the
Nation's capability to prevent disease;

3. to expand the knowledge base in medical and associated sciences in order to enhance the
Nation's economic well-being and ensure a continued high return on the public investment in
research; and

4. to exemplify and promote the highest level of scientific integrity, public accountability, and social
responsibility in the conduct of science.

In realizing these goals, the NIH provides leadership and direction to programs designed to improve the
health of the Nation by conducting and supporting research:

in the causes, diagnosis, prevention, and cure of human diseases;

in the processes of human growth and development;

in the biological effects of environmental contaminants;

in the understanding of mental, addictive and physical disorders; and

in directing programs for the collection, dissemination, and exchange of information in medicine
and health, including the development and support of medical libraries and the training of
medical librarians and other health information specialists.
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In addition, the NIH sponsors training of research personnel; career development of new and established
scientists; construction and renovation of research facilities and provision of other research resources.

To carry out these responsibilities, the NIH is organized into awarding components (Institutes/Centers).
Those components that have an extramural element, that is, provide funds for research and research
training activities in organizations external to the NIH, are shown below. The NIH makes every effort to
finance worthy applications, including the co-funding of such applications by one or more awarding
components having relevance in the projects.

Funding levels for projects are determined through the combined interaction among peer review, grants
management, program, budget, and other Institute and/or Centers (IC) staff. These levels are based on
allowable costs that are consistent with the principles of sound cost management and in consideration of
IC priorities, constraints on the growth of average grant costs, and the availability of funds.

Before considering and/or preparing an application to the SBIR & STTR programs, all applicants are
strongly encouraged to review the agencies’ and NIH Institutes’ and Centers’ websites and to contact the
SBIR-STTR program coordinators listed in the Omnibus Solicitation.

TRANS-NIH RESEARCH PROGRAMS

Phase IIB Competing Renewal Awards

Some NIH Institutes/Centers (ICs) offer Phase Il SBIR/STTR awardees the opportunity to apply for Phase
[IB Competing Renewal awards. These are available for those projects that require extraordinary time
and effort in the R&D phase and may or may not require FDA approval for the development of such
projects, including drugs, devices, vaccines, therapeutics, and medical implants related to the mission of
the IC. Some ICs have announced this opportunity through the NIH Guide for Grants and Contracts (see
link below), and some are using this Omnibus SBIR/STTR Grant Solicitation. Only those small business
concerns who have been awarded a Phase Il are eligible to apply for a Phase 11B Competing Renewal
award. Prospective applicants are strongly encouraged to contact NIH staff prior to submission. Additional
requirements and instructions (e.g., submission of a letter of intent) are available in the specific IC
research topics section and in the specific IC Program Funding Opportunity Announcements
(http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/sbir_announcements.htm). The following NIH ICs will accept
applications for Phase IIB Competing Renewal awards: NIA, NIAAA, NIAID (SBIR only), NICHD (SBIR
only and only Competing Renewals of NICHD-supported Phase Il awards), NIDA, NIDCD, NIDDK (only
Competing Renewals of NIDDK-supported Phase Il awards), NEI (SBIR only), NIGMS (SBIR only), NIMH
(SBIR only), NCATS (SBIR only), and ORIP (SBIR only). NCI offers Phase 1IB opportunities that focus on
the commercialization of SBIR-developed technologies. Contact the NCI SBIR Development Center at
301-594-7709, NCISBIR@mail.nih.gov for additional information. NHLBI offers Phase 1B Competing
Renewals that focus on the commercialization of technologies requiring regulatory approval through the
NHLBI Bridge Award (RFA-HL-13-016). Contact Kurt Marek, Ph.D., at 301-443-8778 or

kurt. marek@nih.gov for additional information. NINDS accepts Phase 11B SBIR/STTR Competing
Renewal applications through specific opportunities that focus on the commercialization of SBIR and
STTR developed technologies. These opportunities can be found on the NINDS SBIR webpage:
http://www.ninds.nih.gov/funding/small-business/small_business funding_opportunities.htm. Contact
Stephanie Fertig, M.B.A., at 301-496-1779 or fertigs@ninds.nih.gov for additional information.

Research Supplements to Promote Diversity in Health-Related Research

(See Funding Opportunity Announcement at http://grants.nih.gov/grants/quide/pa-files/PA-12-149.html.)

The NIH recognizes a unique and compelling need to promote diversity in the biomedical, behavioral,
clinical and social sciences research workforce. The NIH expects efforts to diversify the workforce to lead
to the recruitment of the most talented researchers from all groups; to improve the quality of the
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educational and training environment; to balance and broaden the perspective in setting research
priorities; to improve the ability to recruit subjects from diverse backgrounds into clinical research
protocols; and to improve the Nation's capacity to address and eliminate health disparities.

The NIH notifies Principal Investigators holding specific types of NIH research grants (including SBIR and
STTR awards) that funds are available for administrative supplements to improve diversity by supporting
and recruiting students, postdoctorates, and eligible investigators from groups that have been shown to
be underrepresented in the biomedical, behavioral, clinical, and social sciences research workforce.
Although the administrative supplements supported under this program provide funding for less than one
percent of all individuals involved in NIH supported research, the NIH has found these awards to be an
effective means of encouraging institutions to recruit from currently underrepresented groups.
Administrative supplements must support work within the scope of the original project.

All NIH awarding components and the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health at the CDC
participate in this program. Candidates eligible for support under this supplement program include
individuals at various career levels who come from groups that have been shown to be underrepresented
in science. Such candidates include individuals from underrepresented racial and ethnic groups,
individuals with disabilities, and individuals from disadvantaged backgrounds. Detailed eligibility criteria
are described in the full announcement.

An application for a supplement may be submitted at any time. Administrative supplements normally end
with the competitive cycle of the parent grant.

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS (SUBJECT TO CHANGE)
Available to NIH SBIR/STTR Awardees

One of the goals of the SBIR and STTR programs is to “increase private sector commercialization of
innovations developed through Federal SBIR R&D.” To help NIH SBIR/STTR awardees move their
products into the marketplace, NIH has developed several assistance programs that provide technical
and/or commercialization assistance specific to the individual needs of NIH SBIR/STTR awardees. In
accordance with the SBIR/STTR Reauthorization Act of 2011, applicants can also identify their own
technical assistance provider. Applicants wishing to utilize their own technical assistance vendor are
required to include this as a consultant in your budget and provide a detailed budget justification. See
Section IV. Application and Submission Information of the Omnibus FOAs. Please note, if funds are
requested to utilize your own technical assistance vendor and an award is made, the awardee cannot
apply for the NIH-provided technical assistance program for the phase of their award.

Additional information about these programs is available at http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/tap.htm.
Questions may be addressed to the NIH SBIR/STTR Office at sbir@od.nih.gov.

Niche Assessment Program
(For NIH SBIR/STTR Phase | awardees)

The Niche Assessment Program focuses on obtaining the necessary information for strategizing and
making deals. Often, a research scientist does not have the entrepreneurial skills to assess whether there
are other applications or market niches for their SBIR/STTR-developed technology. As a result, they may
underestimate its true market value. This program assesses the market opportunities, needs and
concerns of end-users and helps to discover new markets for possible entry for the SBIR/STTR-
developed technology. With the assistance of the participant, a contractor helps identify niches and
potential partners. The contractor performs the due diligence and provides an in-depth report that
assesses such items as the potential end-users needs, the competing technologies and products, the
competitive advantage, the market size and share that the participant might expect, etc. Targets (end
users) are contacted to ensure they are viable leads and their contact information is included in the report
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for possible follow-up. Participants may find this report helpful in preparing the requisite
Commercialization Plan required for a Phase Il application. For detailed information about the Niche
Assessment Program, see http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/nap.htm.

Participation in this program is open to NIH SBIR and STTR Phase | awardees (grants, cooperative
agreements, and contracts) and participants need only commit a few hours to inform and make the
contractor fully conversant on their technology and the niche they would like to have investigated. There
is no cost to the NIH awardee to participate in this program.

Commercialization Assistance Program (CAP)
(For NIH SBIR/STTR Phase Il awardees)

The Commercialization Assistance Program (CAP) assists small companies with getting their
SBIR/STTR-developed technologies more rapidly into the marketplace. It provides assistance with
developing and implementing an appropriate business strategy aimed at commercializing the products or
services that have resulted from NIH-supported SBIR/STTR awards.

CAP can include two distinctive tracks that offer customized assistance to meet the specific needs of both
early stage and seasoned companies: (1) Commercialization Training Track (CTT), and (2) Accelerated
Commercialization Track (ACT). CTT is aimed at assisting participants with evaluating their
commercialization options based on their specific technologies and to develop a solid market-entry plan
covering an 18-month period. It also assists in the development of market-appropriate tools to accomplish
these objectives.

The ACT track assists those companies that may have successfully commercialized products and/or
services, generated revenue, established partnerships and/or otherwise achieved a level of market
development that is sustainable over a definitive period. However, they may be lacking in a specific,
applicable issue (such as a solid regulatory plan, a license-focused IP strategy or a term sheet for
investors), whose resolution is key to their continued growth.

Participation in CAP is open to NIH SBIR and STTR Phase Il awardees (grants, cooperative agreements,
and contracts) from the previous five years. Participation is free to the NIH SBIR/STTR awardee;
however, participants are responsible for travel and lodging expenses associated with attending
workshops and partnering investment events. Detailed information is available at
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/cap/index.htm.
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NIH, CDC, FDA, AND ACF AWARDING COMPONENT CONTACT INFORMATION

AWARDING COMPONENT

PROGRAM CONTACT

GRANTS MGMT. CONTACT

National Institute on Aging
http://www.nia.nih.gov

Dr. Michael-David A.R.R. Kerns
Phone: 301-402-7713

Ms. Linda Whipp
Phone: 301-496-1472

Fax: 301-402-2945 Fax: 301-402-3672
Email: Email: Linda.Whipp@nih.gov
Michael-David.Kerns@nih.gov

National Institute on Alcohol Dr. Gary Murray Ms. Judy Fox

Abuse and Alcoholism
http://www.niaaa.nih.gov

Phone: 301-443-9940
Fax: 301-594-0673
Email: Gary.Murray@nih.gov

Phone: 301-443-4704
Fax: 301-443-3891
Email: Judy.Fox@nih.gov

National Institute of Allergy and
Infectious Diseases

http://www.niaid.nih.gov

Dr. Paula Strickland

Phone: 301-435-8563

Fax: 301-480-1993
Email: pstrickland@nih.gov

Mr. Michael Wright

Phone: 301-451-2688

Fax: 301-493-0597

Email: mawright@mail.nih.gov

National Institute of Arthritis and
Musculoskeletal and Skin
Diseases

http://www.niams.nih.gov/

Dr. Xibin Wang

Phone: 301-451-3884

Fax: 301-480-1284

Email: wangxl@mail.nih.gov

Ms. Sheila Simmons

Phone: 301-594-9812

Fax: 301-480-5450

Email: simmonss@mail.nih.gov

Mr. Erik (Timothy) Edgerton
Phone: 301-594-3968

Fax:  301-480-5450

Email: edgertont@mail.nih.gov

National Institute of Biomedical
Imaging and Bioengineering
http://www.nibib.nih.gov/

Mr. Todd Merchak

Phone: 301-496-8592

Fax: 301-480-1614

Email: merchakt@mail.nih.gov

Mr. James Huff

Phone: 301-451-4786
Fax: 301-451-5735
Email: huffi@mail.nih.gov

National Cancer Institute
http://sbir.cancer.gov

Mr. Michael Weingarten
Phone: 301-594-7709

Fax:  301-480-4082
Email: ncisbir@mail.nih.gov

Ms. Jacquelyn Boudjeda
Phone: 301-496-1204

Fax: 301-496-8662

Email: boudjedaj@mail.nih.gov

Eunice Kennedy Shriver
National Institute of Child Health
and Human Development

http://www.nichd.nih.gov

Louis A. Quatrano, Ph.D.
Phone: 301-402-4221

Fax: 301-402-0832

Email: Quatranol@mail.nih.gov

Mr. Ted Williams

Phone: 301- 435-6996

Fax: 301-451-5510
Email: williate @mail.nih.gov

National Institute on Drug Abuse
http://www.nida.nih.gov

Elena Koustova, Ph.D., MBA
Phone: 301-496-8768
Email: koustovae@nida.nih.gov

Ms. Diana Haikalis, M.B.A.
Phone: 301-443-6710

Fax: 301-594-6849

Email: dhaikali@nida.nih.gov
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AWARDING COMPONENT

PROGRAM CONTACT

GRANTS MGMT. CONTACT

National Institute on Deafness
and Other Communication
Disorders

http://www.nidcd.nih.gov

Dr. Roger L. Miller

Phone: 301-402-3458

Fax: 301-402-6251

Email: Roger.Miller@nih.gov

Mr. Christopher P. Myers
Phone: 301-435-0713

Fax: 301-402-1758
Email:
Christopher.Myers@nih.gov

National Institute of Dental and
Craniofacial Research

http://www.nidcr.nih.gov

Dr. R. Dwayne Lunsford
Phone: 301-594-2421

Fax: 301-480-8319

Email: lunsfordr@mail.nih.gov

Ms. Mary Greenwood
Phone: 301-594-4808
Fax: 301-480-3562
Email: mary.daley@nih.gov

National Institute of Diabetes and
Digestive and Kidney Diseases

http://www.niddk.nih.gov

Ms. Christine Densmore
Phone: 301-402-8714
Fax:  301-480-8300
Email:
densmorec@niddk.nih.gov

Mr. Gene McGeehan
Phone: 301-594-0417
Fax: 301-594-9523
Email:
mcgeehane@niddk.nih.gov

National Institute of
Environmental Health Sciences

http://www.niehs.nih.gov

Dr. Daniel T. Shaughnessy
Phone: 919-541-2506
Fax: 919-541-4606
Email:
shaughnl@niehs.nih.gov

Ms. Pam Clark

Phone: 919-541-7629

Fax: 919-541-2860

Email: evans3@niehs.nih.gov

National Eye Institute
http://www.nei.nih.gov

Dr. Jerome Wujek

Phone: 301-451-2020

Fax: 301-496-2297

Email: wujekjer@nei.nih.gov

Mr. William Darby

Phone: 301-451-2020
Fax: 301-496-9997
Email: wwd@nei.nih.gov

National Institute of General
Medical Sciences

http://www.nigms.nih.gov/

Dr. Scott Somers

Phone: 301-594-3827

Fax: 301-480-2802

Email: somerss@nigms.nih.gov

Ms. Patrice Molnar

Phone: 301-594-5136

Fax: 301-480-2554

Email: molnarp@nigms.nih.gov

National Heart, Lung, and Blood
Institute

http://www.nhlbi.nih.gov

Kurt Marek, Ph.D.

Phone: 301-443-8778

Fax:  301-480-0422
Email: Kurt.Marek@nih.gov

Andre Walker
Phone: 301-435-0166

Fax: 301-451-5462
Email: Andre.Walker@nih.gov
Hubert Walters

Phone: 301-435-0166
Fax: 301-451-5462
Email: waltersh@nhlbi.nih.gov

National Human Genome
Research Institute

http://www.genome.gov

Bettie J. Graham, Ph.D.

Phone: 301-496-7531

Fax:  301-480-2770

Email: Bettie graham@nih.gov

Ms. Cheryl Chick

Phone: 301-435-7858

Fax: 301-402-1951

Email: ChickC@mail.nih.gov
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AWARDING COMPONENT PROGRAM CONTACT GRANTS MGMT. CONTACT

National Institute of Mental Dr. Margaret C. Grabb Ms. Rebecca Claycamp
Health Phone: 301-443-3563 Phone: 301-443-2811
http://www.nimh.nih.qov Fax:  301-443-1731 Fax:  301-443-6885

Email: mgrabb@mail.nih.gov Email: rclaycam@mail.nih.gov
National Institute on Minority Mr. Vincent A. Thomas, Jr. Ms. Priscilla Grant, J.D., C.R.A.
Health and Health Disparities MSW, MPA Phone: 301-594-8412
http://www.nimhd.nih.gov/ Phone: 301-402-2516 Fax: 301-480-4049

Fax:  301-480-4049 Email: Priscilla.Grant@nih.gov

Email: thomasvi@mail.nih.gov

National Institute of Neurological | Ms. Stephanie Fertig Ms. Tijuanna Decoster
Disorders and Stroke Phone: 301-496-1779 Phone: 301-496-9231
http://www.ninds.nih.gov Fax:  301-402-1501 Fax:  301-402-4370

National Institute of Nursing Dr. Paul A. Cotton Mr. Brian Albertini
Research Phone: 301-402-6423 Phone: 301-594-6869
http://www.nih.gov/ninr Fax:  301-480-8260 Fax:  301-402-4502

Email: Paul.Cotton@nih.gov Email: albertib2@mail.nih.gov
National Center for Advancing Lili M. Portilla, MPA Mrs. Tiffany Walker
Translational Sciences Phone: 301-402-0304 Phone: 301-402-0839
http://www.ncats.nih.gov Fax:  301-480-3661 Fax:  301-480-3777

Email: Portilll@mail.nih.gov Email: walkerti@mail.nih.gov
National Center for Dr. Craig Hopp Mr. George Tucker, MBA
Complementary and Alternative Phone: 301-496-5825 Phone: 301-594-8853
Medicine Fax:  301-480-1587 Fax:  301-480-1552
http://www.nccam.nih.gov/ Email: hoppdc@mail.nih.gov Email: George.Tucker@nih.gov
National Library of Medicine Dr. Jane Ye Mr. Dwight Mowery
http://www.nlm.nih.gov Phone: 301-594-4882 Phone: 301-496-4221

Fax:  301-402-2952 Fax:  301-402-0421

Email: yej@mail.nih.gov Email: moweryd@mail.nih.gov
Division of Program Coordination, | Dr. Miguel Contreras Mr. Long Nguyen
Planning, and Strategic Phone: 301-594-9410 Phone: 301-402-6737
Initiatives, Office of Research Fax:  301-480-3819 Fax:  301-480-3777
Infrastructure Programs Email: contrel@mail.nih.gov Email: nguyenl@mail.nih.gov
http://dpcpsi.nih.gov/ORIP/index.
aspx
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AWARDING COMPONENT

PROGRAM CONTACT

GRANTS MGMT. CONTACT

Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC)

http://www.cdc.gov

Dr. Brenda Colley Gilbert
(NCBDDD)

Phone: 770-488-8390

Fax: 770-488-7863

Email: BColleyGilbert@cdc.gov

Ms. Barbara Stewart (NCEZID)
Phone: 404-718-8832

Fax: 404-498-2626

Email: BStewart@cdc.gov

Dr. Paul Smutz (NCIPC)
Phone: 770-488-4850
Fax: 770-488-1665
Email: WSmutz@cdc.gov

Dr. Steve Dearwent

(NIOSH)

Phone: 404-498-6382

Fax:  404-498-0751
Email: SDearwent@cdc.gov

Roslyn Curington
(NCBDDD)

Phone: 770-488-2745

Fax: 770-488-2777

Email: RCurington@cdc.gov

Tracey Sims

(NCBDDD)

Phone: 770-488-2739

Fax: 770-488-2777

Email: TraceySims@cdc.gov

Mr. Hector Buitrago (NCEZID)
Phone: 770-488-2921

Fax:  770-488-2777

Email: HBuitrago@cdc.gov

Ms. Sharron Orum (NCIPC)
Phone: 770-488-2716

Fax: 770-488-2847

Email: SOrum@cdc.gov

Ms. Mary Pat Shanahan
(NIOSH)

Phone: 412-386-4453

Fax: 412-386-6429

Email: MShanahan@cdc.gov

Food and Drug Administration
(FDA)

http://www.fda.gov

Ms. Kimberly Pendleton Chew
Phone: 301-827-9363

Fax: 301-827-0505

Email:
kKimberly.pendleton@fda.hhs.gov

Mr. Martin Bernard

Phone: 301-443-5869

Fax: 301-827-0505
Email:
Martin.Bernard@fda.hhs.gov

Administration for Children and
Families

http://www.acf.hhs.gov

Anne F. Bergan

Phone: 202-260-8515

Fax:  202-205-3598
Email: abergan@acf.hhs.gov

Edeltraud Fernandez

Phone: 202-401-2346

Fax: 202-205-3598

Email: efernandez@acf.hhs.gov

NATIONAL INSTITUTE ON AGING (NIA)

The NIA SBIR-STTR Programs support biomedical, behavioral, and social research and research training
on the aging process as well as on the diseases and other special problems and needs of older people. It
supports SBIR and STTR grant research under four established divisions: Behavioral and Social
Research, Aging Biology, Geriatrics and Clinical Gerontology, and Neuroscience.
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Examples of research topics within the mission of the NIA that may be of interest to small businesses are
shown below. These listings illustrate the range of areas that are of interest to the NIA and are not
intended to be exhaustive.

For additional information about areas of interest to the NIA, please visit our home page at
http://www.nia.nih.gov.

Limited Amount of Award

For budgetary, administrative, or programmatic reasons, the NIA may not fund an application or may
decrease the length of an award and/or the budget recommended by a review committee. For topics
listed on the NIH SBIR/STTR Topic Waiver Webpage, the NIA does not generally fund Phase |
applications greater than $300,000 total costs or project periods greater than 2 years; or Phase I
applications greater than $2,000,000 total costs or project periods greater than 3 years. For all other
topics, the NIA does not generally fund Phase | applications greater than $225,000 total costs or
project periods greater than 2 years; or Phase Il applications greater than $1,500,000 total costs or
project periods greater than 3 years. Applicants considering a requested budget greater than these
limits are strongly encouraged to contact program staff before submitting an application.

Phase 1IB Competing Renewal Awards

NIA accepts Phase 11B Competing Renewal grant applications from Phase Il SBIR/STTR awardees to
continue the process of developing products, primarily for pharmaceutical compounds and medical
devices, requiring regulatory approval by the Food & Drug Administration (FDA). NIA accepts applications
for up to two (2) years and up to $750,000 per year in total costs. The Phase 1B Competing Renewal
award is intended to allow small businesses the opportunity to advance research to a stage where
interest in and investment by third parties would be more likely.

Prospective Phase I[IB Competing Renewal applicants are strongly encouraged to submit a letter of intent
to Dr. Kerns that includes the following information:

Descriptive title of the proposed research

Name, address, and telephone number of the Principal Investigator
Names of other key personnel

Anticipated Budget

Participating institutions

Funding Opportunity Announcement Number (e.g., PA-12-XXX, if relevant)

Although a letter of intent is not binding and does not enter into the review of a subsequent application, it
allows NIA staff to estimate the potential review workload, plan the review, and consider budget
implications. It is anticipated that only a small number of NIA SBIR/STTR Phase Il awards would be
eligible for a Phase IIB Competing Renewal award.

The following examples would make appropriate topics for Phase 1B Competing Renewal projects. These
are meant only as indications of potential Phase 1IB Competing Renewal projects and are not exclusive of
other appropriate activities. Research and development efforts can be focused, for example, on
medications to treat, delay the progression of or prevent age-related cognitive decline, mild cognitive
impairment (MCI), Alzheimer’s disease, and other dementias of aging.

1. Studies for preclinical discovery and development of drugs, natural products, or other types of
compounds, including pharmacology and toxicology studies, beyond those conducted under the
initial SBIR Phase | and Phase Il grants. The studies conducted under the previous grants should be
sufficient to provide a sound rationale for continued development of the compound, drug or natural
product.
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2. Completion of studies as required by the FDA for an IND application.

3. Human clinical trials/studies to determine a drug’s, natural product’s, or other type of compound’s
safety profile, metabolism, and/or efficacy.

For questions relating to Phase 11B Competing Renewal applications, please contact:
Dr. Michael-David (“M-D") A.R.R. Kerns

301-402-7713, Fax: 301-402-2945
Email: kernsmd@mail.nih.gov

Division of Behavioral and Social Research (DBSR)

Basic and translational social and behavioral research on aging processes and the place of older people
in society. The division focuses on how people change with age, on the interrelations between older
people and social institutions (e.g., the family, health-care systems), and on the societal impact of the
changing age-composition of the population. Special emphasis areas are (1) Health Disparities; (2) Aging
Minds; (3) Increasing Health Expectancy; (4) Health, Work, and Retirement; (5) Interventions and
Behavior Change; (6) Genetics, Behavior, and the Social Environment; and (7) the Burden of lliness and
the Efficiency of Health Systems.

Limited Amount of Award

For budgetary, administrative, or programmatic reasons, NIA ‘s Division of Behavioral and Social
Research (DBSR) may not fund an SBIR or STTR application or may decrease the budget and duration
of an award recommended by a peer-review committee. Generally, NIA DBSR does not fund Phase |
applications with budgets greater than $150,000 or Phase Il applications with budgets greater than
$1,000,000.

In making funding decisions about SBIR and STTR applications recommended by a peer-review
committee, NIA DBSR emphasizes proposals that feature new and innovative research and development.
Furthermore, NIA DBSR places a premium on innovative SBIR-STTR research and development that
address new and different product categories, product categories that transcend traditional categories of
focus, such as training videos and medication reminders.

Applicants considering requested budgets greater than these limits or for research and development of
training videos or medication reminders are strongly encouraged to contact NIA DBSR program staff prior
to developing and submitting SBIR-STTR applications.

A. Development and translation of behavioral economics approaches (incentives or disincentives) to
motivate sustainable behavior change to improve health and well-being.

1. Increasing levels of physical activity or promoting treatment adherence

2. Addressing biases such as loss aversion, errors in affective forecasting, present bias, ambiguity
effect, base-rate neglect, and susceptibility to framing effects in health and financial decision
making

3. Using information, or the mode of data presentation to systematically improve decision making
(e.g., through “nudges,” policies, or practices that constrain choices)

B. Development of robotics applications to aid elderly

1. Socially assistive robots allowing elderly to remain independent in their homes. Technology could
support machine cognition, language understanding and production, human-robot interaction
(cognition, perception, action control, linguistics, and developmental science), perception, and
systems.
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2. Use of robots to motivate elderly to exercise and improve social interaction

Contact Person: Dr. Partha Bhattacharyya
301-496-3138, Fax: 301-402-0051
Email: bhattacharyyap@nia.nih.gov

C. Social, behavioral, environmental and or/technical interventions on the individual, institutional, family,
community or national level intended to maintain older adult independence or functioning, increase
well-being and prevent disease and/or disability.

1.

Interventions to remediate age-related cognitive decline, especially using technology platforms
with wide acceptance among older adults;

Interventions directed at self-management of chronic diseases among the elderly, including
behavioral change and applications to enhance compliance;

Interventions to enhance social function or to improve physical and psychological well-being in
midlife and older age;

The development of evidence-based, risk-reduction programs (also referred to as health
promotion, health management, demand management, and disease-prevention programs) that
are applicable to older U.S. workers.

D. Interventions or programs for issues impacting caregivers of the elderly and older individuals needing
long-term care.

1.

Development of strategies for care providers (both professionals and families) to deal with
burdens associated with chronic disabling iliness or disease (including Alzheimer’s disease);

Programs or interventions that address/decrease the trauma and difficulty of elders, their
families, and care providers faced with end of life decisions and events that surround the end of
life.

E. Genetics and Genome Wide Association

1.

Development of innovative methods and software to facilitate analysis of personal data linked to
geocoded data, biological, cognitive or genetic measures, with improved protection for
confidentiality.

Develop online genetic counseling so that users have a way to interface with professionals
regarding issues that may have arisen after learning about genetic risk for disease, or about any
new ancestry information that might be at odds with their self-identified race.

Develop a more targeted understanding of who will engage in DTC genetic testing and who will
not, based on personality and other characteristics. This could be accomplished through
comparisons with other large-scale surveys.

Contact Person: Ms. Farheen Akbar
301-402-4156, Fax: 301-402-0051
Email: farheen.akbar@nih.gov

F. Devices, products, services or technology that would assist the elderly and their families or
caregivers during disasters and recovery from disasters.

G. The development of software to improve financial decision making among older people. The
software should include projected retirement earnings and expenditures on long term care and out of
pocket medical expenditures.
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H. The development of practical applications using innovative technologies (hand-held, internet,
telemedicine GPS, social networking and communications technologies) to support and improve
quality of life, well-being, and the ability of older adults to live independently and safely at home).

I.  New sampling and data collection methodologies for use in large population-based household
surveys and behavioral interventions of relevance to aging. These include:

1. Experience sampling and new devices for real-time collection of data;

2. Performance based measures for cognitive or physical functioning as well as new instruments
for cognitive testing, sleep quality, assessment of basic decision-making domains, or
assessments of social behaviors;

3. Improvements to blood spot technology for biological data collection (this includes the
development of multiple and reliable assays for limited blood spot specimens).

J.  Survey Development/Archiving/Database support

1. Development of new databases and database support infrastructure to satisfy data and research
needs in aging as well as the development of innovative data archives to make current statistical
and epidemiological data more accessible and policy relevant;

2. Development of data extraction web tools for public use databases;

3. Development of innovative methods and software to provide improved access to complex
longitudinal studies or surveys that cannot be placed in open data archives because of issues
relating to confidentiality;

4. Development of innovative methods and software to facilitate analysis of personal data linked to
geocoded data, biological, cognitive or genetic measures, with improved protection for
confidentiality of respondents;

5. Development of data infrastructure and tools for assessing the economic impact of federally-
funded research.

K. Forecasting and Software for analyzing of healthcare claims

1. Development of models that will lead to improved forecasting of national, state and county level
estimates of the demand for aging-related services; and improved prediction of the costs and
effects of public health interventions, changes in health-care financing and insurance, social
security, pension coverage or changes in the retirement age. Both domestic and international
projections are of interest;

2. Development of software which will provide insight on key factors that contributes to growth of
medical expenditures through analysis of claims data.

L. Develop risk reduction programs (also referred to as health promotion, health management, demand
management, and disease prevention programs) among those aged 45-64 within the private sector
or health. The goal of these interventions is to improve the health of older workers, reduce avoidable
health care utilization, and be cost-effective for employee insurance plans.

Contact Person: Ms. Amy Mistretta
301-496-3138, Fax: 301-402-0051
Email: amy.mistretta@nih.gov
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Division of Aging Biology (DAB)

DAB sponsors research on the molecular, cellular, genetic, and physiological causes and consequences
of aging processes. The ultimate goal is to develop interventions to reduce and/or delay age-related
degenerative processes in humans. DAB also has responsibility for maintaining existing resources and
developing new resources for aging research, such as populations of well-characterized animals and
specific cell lines including, for example, human fetal lung fibroblasts.

DAB areas of research that may be of interest to small businesses include, but are not limited to:

A. Effects of metabolism on the aging process, e.g., how metabolic regulation influences longevity, and
the development of anti-oxidants or other interventions to reduce oxidative or other stresses and
aging-related diseases.

Dr. David Finkelstein
Phone: 301-496-6402

Email: df18s@nih.gov

B. Development of minimally-perturbing techniques for collecting blood from mice, rats, and other
animals several times a day in sufficient quantities for measurement of hormone levels and other
circulating factors in young and old animals, or development of non-invasive research and test
methods for use in animals.

Dr. Nancy Nadon
Phone: 301-496-6402
Email: nadonn@nia.nih.gov

C. 1. Development of molecular probes such as antibodies, DNA sequences and expression vectors
useful in studying aging, senescence, and longevity both in vivo and in vitro.

2. Validation and further development of candidate interventions which have been found to enhance
longevity or slow aging, either in cultured cells, animal models, and humans, and which may affect
other age-related conditions or diseases such as cancer and cardiovascular diseases.

3. Development of interventions that improve the immune response to foreign molecules or reduce
the response to self or suppress age-induced inflammation.

Dr. Rebecca Fuldner
Phone: 301-496-6402
Email: Fuldnerr@mail.nih.gov

D. Development of novel strategies for treating age-related renal, pulmonary, urology, reproductive
disorders, and age-related changes in hormone production and function. The topics could include
devices, pharmacological targets and their validation, small molecules and other approaches to treat
these disorders in the elderly. Early-stage pharmacological validation of novel targets and
accompanying pre-therapeutic leads for these age-related diseases are encouraged.

Dr. Mahadev Murthy
Phone: 301-496-6402
Email: murthy@mail.nih.gov

E. 1. Development of treatments for wound healing in the aged. These would include devices,
processes, and pharmacological agents with the potential to (1) promote would healing in aged
tissues, or (2) reduce scar formation without compromising effective healing. Wounds produced
by accidental damage or resulting from surgery would be appropriate for consideration.

2. Development of novel methodology for treating osteoimmunology. These could include devices,
processes and pharmacological agents with the potential to (1) Slow the rate of joint deterioration,
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(2) promote the remodeling of damaged joints, (3) reduce the likelihood of progression to
osteoarthritis, and/or (4) improve outcomes for patients with active osteoarthritis.

Dr. John Williams
Phone: 301-496-6402
Email: williamsjé@mail.nih.gov

F. 1

Development of cell-based therapies or other treatments to repair myocardial or vascular tissues
after ischemia. The work should include consideration of age-related effects on the therapy or
treatment.

. Early development to re-purpose FDA-approved drugs or interventions for common diseases

(cancer, cardiovascular, etc.) on aging-related diseases or conditions using senescence cell
culture or animal models.

Dr. Ronald Kohanski
Phone: 301-496-6402
Email: kohanskir@mail.nih.gov

G. 1.

Development of tools and technologies to characterize cellular heterogeneity in aging tissues at
the single cell level.

Development of interventional strategies to alter the senescence status of cells in tissues and
organs of old animals.

Development of computational and bio statistical methods for systems biology approaches.
Development of new interventions using screens for senescence in cell culture or animal models.

Development of interventions that reduce the level of damage to nucleic acids, proteins and lipids
and the macromolecular complexes formed from these molecules, and improve the damage
surveillance and repair potential of cells.

Dr. Jose Velazquez
Phone: 301-496-6402
Email: Jose.Velazquez@nih.gov

H. 1.

Development of tools and resources in genetics and genomics to study molecular mechanisms of
normal aging or aging-related diseases.

Development of biomarkers for prognosis, diagnosis, or treatment monitoring of aging or aging-
related diseases. Analysis and integration of large data sets are encouraged for developing such
biomarkers or biomarker signatures.

Development of computational, statistical, or bioinformatics tools and resources to manage,
integrate, and mine large aging-related data sets; Development of databases, methods, or data
analysis systems for aging research; Development of technologies, tools, methods, and
resources useful for the study of aging and aging-related diseases at the systems biology level.

Development of probiotics or prebiotics which are beneficial for age-related diseases or
conditions.

Dr. Max Guo
Phone: 301-402-7747
Email: Max.Guo@nih.gov

Division of Neuroscience (DN)

DN supports research on age-related changes in the brain or nervous system in the context of other age-
related physiological or homeostatic regulator changes (e.g., endocrine, dietary, sleep and circadian
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rhythms, immune, disease states); degenerative processes or pathological changes in the aging brain in
the context of understanding normal age-related changes; and the sensory, motor, perceptual and
cognitive processes and changes that occur with aging as related to their underlying biological
mechanisms.

An important component of DN is the support of studies on Mild Cognitive Impairment (MCI), Alzheimer's
disease (AD), and other dementias of aging such as Frontotemporal Dementia, Lewy Body Dementia,
and Vascular Dementia.

Areas that may be of interest to small businesses include, but are not limited to:

A. Development of sensitive, specific and standardized tests for diagnostic screening of cognitive
decline and dementia; for example, the development of novel neuropsychological, biochemical and
neuroimaging methods for the early detection of cognitive decline and MCI and the early diagnosis
of AD.

Dr. John Hsiao
301-496-9350; Fax: 301-496-1494
Email: jhsiao@mail.nih.gov

or

Dr. Nina Silverberg (neuropsychological detection methods)
Email: silverbergn@mail.nih.gov

B. Discovery, development, and/or evaluation of drugs, biological or natural products, including central-
nervous-system delivery systems, to enhance cognitive functioning in normal aging and to treat the
cognitive deterioration and/or behavioral symptoms associated with MCI, AD, and other dementias
of aging as well as to slow and/or reverse the course of the disease or to prevent it entirely.

Dr. Neil Buckholtz (MCI, AD, & other dementias of aging)
301-496-9350, Fax: 301-496-1494

Email: nb12s@nih.gov

and

Dr. Suzana Petanceska (MCI, AD, & other dementias of aging)
301-496-9350; Fax: 301-496-1494
Email: petanceskas@nia.nih.gov

and

Dr. Molly Wagster (Cognitive functioning in normal aging)
301-496-9350; Fax: 301-496-1494
Email: wagsterm@mail.nih.gov

The development of practical applications using innovative technologies (e.g. hand-held, internet,
telemedicine GPS, robotics, social networking and communications technologies) to support and improve
quality of life, well-being, and the ability of people with MCI, AD or other dementias of aging to live
independently and safely at home for an extended period of time. Examples include systems and devices
to: evaluate, monitor and improve or adapt to changes in cognition; improve health service delivery;
support independent living and the conduct of everyday tasks at home; provide information to health care
providers and family members with which to evaluate the need for intervention; and promote
communication and interaction between individuals living in the community or in institutional settings and
their health care providers, friends and family members.

Dr. Nina Silverberg
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Email: silverbergn@mail.nih.gov

C. Testing in clinical trials of drug, nutritional, behavioral, cognitive or other types of interventions to
enhance cognitive functioning in normal aging and to treat cognitive deterioration and/or behavioral
symptoms associated with MCI, AD, and other dementias of aging as well as to slow and/or reverse
the course of disease or to prevent the onset of disease.

Dr. Laurie Ryan (MCI, AD, & other dementias of aging)
301-496-9350; Fax: 301-496-1494
Email: ryanl@mail.nih.gov

and

Dr. Molly Wagster (Cognitive functioning in normal aging)
301-496-9350; Fax: 301-496-1494
Email: wagsterm@mail.nih.gov

D. Devices or intervention strategies that may prolong functional independence when there are
dysfunctions of the central nervous system.

E. Behavioral, environmental, pharmacological, & nutritional interventions to prevent and/or remediate
brain biochemical and/or neurophysiological changes caused by normal aging and
neurodegenerative diseases, including age-related sensory dysfunction (e.g., pain, hearing loss,
speech communication disorders, olfaction loss, & vision loss), motor dysfunctions (including
Parkinson’s disease & other age-related psychomotor disorders) or age-related decrements in
balance & postural control, gait performance, and mobility.

F. Biosensors and prosthetic devices, technologies, and related software development to aid in the
assessment, diagnosis, and remediation of age-related cognitive decline or sensory dysfunction
(including pain), motor dysfunction (including Parkinson’s disease and other motor disorders of
aging), or age-related changes in balance, postural control, and gait. Novel markers of normal age-
dependent cognitive decline or sensory and/or motor system changes at the molecular cellular,
circuitry, physiological or behavioral level in humans or relevant animal models.

Dr. Wen G. Chen
301-496-9350, Fax: 301-496-1494
Email: chenw@mail.nih.gov

or

Dr. Molly Wagster
301-496-9350, Fax: 301-496-1494
Email: wagsterm@mail.nih.gov

G. New technologies to screen for the presence of sleep disorders in older persons, to aid in the
diagnosis of these disorders, and to enable their remediation.

H. Minimally invasive technologies to detect prion diseases early in the course of the disease process
in older adults, as well as effective treatment strategies to slow, halt or prevent these diseases.

Dr. Miroslaw Mackiewicz
301-496-9350, Fax: 301-496-1494
Email: mackiewiczm2@mail.nih.gov

I.  Improved instrumentation, imaging technology, related devices, and software packages for use in
visualizing neural activity during cognitive or sensory behavior in older adults. Also of interest would
be new technologies to combine neural imaging and behavioral assessment in awake animals.
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Dr. Molly Wagster
301-496-9350, Fax: (301)496-1494
Email: wagsterm@mail.nih.gov

J. Development of technology and analysis tools to examine cellular patterns of gene and protein
expression in the normal and diseased aging nervous system, including the identification of aberrant
gene products expressed in the aging brain. Development of molecular imaging technology for the in
vitro and in vivo analysis of gene and protein function in the normal aging brain and in the diseased
aging nervous system.

K. Development of technology, including non-invasive methods and novel probes, to monitor and
manipulate the plasticity of neural circuits in the adult and aged nervous system. Development of
novel markers of neural stem cell function (proliferation, migration, and differentiation) as well as
methods to assess the integration and function of stem cells in the nervous system.

Dr. Brad Wise (Normal brain aging)
301-496-9350, Fax: 301-496-1494

Email: bw86y@nih.gov

and

Dr. Lawrence Refolo (Alzheimer's disease & other dementias of aging)
301-496-9350, Fax: 301-496-1494
Email: refolol@mail.nih.gov

Division of Geriatrics and Clinical Gerontology (DGCG)

DGCG supports clinical and translational research on health and disease in the aged and research on
aging over the human life span and its relationships to health outcomes. Translational research is of
interest for developing and testing the effectiveness of interventions known to be efficacious for everyday
clinical practice and health decision making. Research on Geriatrics focuses primarily on health issues
regarding the aged, and deals with research on disease and disability in older persons, including both
specific conditions and issues related to multiple morbidity. Clinical Gerontology Research focuses
primarily on clinically related issues regarding aging, and deals with research on aging changes over the
life span. A major focus is on the determinants of rates of progression of age-related changes that affect
disease risk, particularly those affecting risk for multiple age-related conditions.

Areas of interest include but are not limited to:

A. Development of vaccines and other agents for preventing and treating infections in older persons,
including development of new vaccines or preventive interventions, and new methods using
currently available vaccines or preventive medications.

B. Development of clinical decision support tools that helps physicians caring for patients with multiple
chronic conditions to prioritize the interventions that are most beneficial and relevant within the
context of these patients’ lives.

C. Devices and/or techniques for preventing or treating urinary incontinence.

D. Development of improved post-surgical treatments/technologies promoting wound healing and
reduced scar formation.

Dr. Marcel Salive
301-496-6761, Fax: 301-402-1784
Email: saliveme@nia.nih.gov

E. Refinements in techniques for the measurement of age-related changes in hormone levels, status or
pharmacokinetics (e.g., those of growth hormone, IGF-1 and its binding proteins; estrogen,
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progesterone, testosterone; other markers of ovarian, testicular, hypothalamic and pituitary function).
The objective is to enhance sensitivity and achieve greater economy in the assay cost.

Effects of menopause on woman's aging and subsequent health. Effects of age-related changes in
endocrine status in men on subsequent aging, morbidity and mortality.

1. Refinements in techniques for the measurement of age-related changes in hormone levels or
pharmacokinetics (e.g., those of growth hormone, IGF-1 and its binding proteins; estrogen,
progesterone, testosterone; other markers of ovarian, testicular, hypothalamic and pituitary
function).

2 Development and testing of alternative strategies (to conventional estrogen/ progestin therapy)
for the management of short-term menopausal symptoms and for the reduction in risks of
cardiovascular disease, osteoporosis, and other menopause-related conditions, disorders and
diseases. Development and testing of new tissue-specific modulators of estrogen/ androgen
receptor activity in men and in women for the prevention or treatment of age-related diseases.

3. Development, testing and validation of new surrogate measures of clinically relevant outcomes
and endpoints (e.qg., fractures) for (1) more immediate and accurate assessment of the risk or
progression of age-related diseases (e.g., osteoporosis) or (2) to predict or monitor efficacy of
treatment or enhanced risk or progression of adverse effects/events.

4. Determine drug interactions, i.e., potential alterations in pharmacokinetics and
pharmacodynamic properties of drugs taken concomitantly with postmenopausal hormones.

Osteoporosis. Development, testing, and validation of new surrogate measures of clinically relevant
outcomes and endpoints (e.g., fractures) for (1) more immediate and accurate assessment of the
risk or progression of age-related diseases (e.g., osteoporosis) or (2) to predict or monitor efficacy,
response to treatment or enhanced risk or progression of adverse effects/events.

Development and validation of non-invasive methods of examining bone quality (density,
architecture, and strength of bone).

Dr. Chhanda Dutta
301-435-3048, Fax: 301-402-1784

Email: cd23z@nih.gov

H.

Improved instrumentation and imaging techniques for measuring body composition and properties
such as muscle function in older persons.

Development of techniques/devices (e.g., non-invasive, portable) for improved monitoring of caloric
intake and/or energy expenditure in epidemiological studies.

Dr. Chhanda Dutta
301-435-3048, Fax: 301-402-1784

Email: cd23z@nih.gov

J.

Measuring ambulation and assessing factors contributing to problems in and/or related to ambulation
and mobility in general

1. Development of improved instrumentation for biomechanical assessment of ambulation and
falls.

2. Development of improved instrumentation to assess balance, sway, gait, and postural control to
identify stable and unstable patterns of movement during activities of daily living

3. Development of improved quantitative methods of assessing postural perturbations relevant to
activities of daily living.

Development of improved, lightweight, and absorbent materials or other interventions to prevent,
protect against and minimize injuries suffered from falls.
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Development of assistive technologies to enable and support older persons to live independently
and safely at home

1. Development of devices/assistive technologies addressing complications of limited mobility
among older persons.

Development of technologies to assist in the improvement of physical function and mobility in older
persons prior to (prehabilitation) or following (rehabilitation) elective/planned surgery.

Research on better ways to prevent injuries and deaths associated with the use of currently-
available bed rails in populations of older patients. Such research would include work on their
identification and testing of improved designs of bed systems for use in homes, skilled nursing
facilities, and hospitals.

Dr. Lyndon Joseph
301-496-6761; Fax: 301-402-1784
Email: Lyndon.Joseph@nih.hhs.gov

0.

Development of devices and techniques for screening substantial numbers of individuals for
particular alleles at loci of relevance to human genetic studies of aging.

Development and validation of imaging and sensor technologies to improve measures of physiologic
changes with age.

Ms. Winifred Rossi, M.A.
301-496-3836, Fax: 301-402-1784

Email: wr33a@nih.gov

Q.

R.

Development and validation of improved approaches for evaluation, monitoring or treatment of
diastolic dysfunction in older adults.

Development and validation of improved techniques for hemodynamic monitoring of older adults in
emergency and/or critical care settings.

Development and validation of instruments or methods to evaluate fatiguability—the level of fatigue
related to the intensity, duration, and/or frequency of activity (in contrast to measures of fatigue),
particularly in adults with or at-risk of developing age-related conditions or diseases leading to
physical disability.

Development and validation of innovative approaches to pain control that consider age-related
physiologic changes such as gastrointestinal absorption, cutaneous integrity, and musculoskeletal
structure and function.

Development and evaluation of treatment approaches to age-related diseases or conditions based
on modulation of the thyroid hormone axis.

Interventions and methods for screening, diagnosis, and treatment of cancer in older persons.

Development of methods to accurately determine the renal glomerular filtration rate (GFR) in older
persons and patients with chronic kidney disease. The new methods should justify the effects of
age-related changes in muscle mass, levels of serum creatinine, renal blood flow and renal
concentrating ability.

Identification of novel biomarkers of acute kidney injury and chronic kidney disease in older persons.
Such research would include identification of biomarkers and evaluation of their clinical utility for
early diagnosis, prediction of the course of progression of diseases and/or monitoring the effects of
treatment.

Development and validation of new technology such as non-invasive methods to examine blood-flow
velocity in arteries, individual coronary arteries, renal arteries, and cerebral arteries.
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Dr. Basil A. Eldadah
301-496-6771; Fax: 301-402-1784
Email: eldadahb@nia.nih.gov

For additional information on research topics and administrative questions, contact:

Dr. Michael-David (“M-D") A.R.R. Kerns
Health Scientist Administrator

National Institute on Aging

Gateway Building, Suite 2C218

7201 Wisconsin Ave., MSC 9205
Bethesda, MD 20892-9205
301-402-7713, Fax: 301-402-2945
Email: michael-david.kerns@nih.hhs.gov

For budget management questions, contact:

Ms. Linda Whipp

Grants Management Officer
National Institute on Aging
Gateway Building, Room 2N212
7201 Wisconsin Ave., MSC 9205
Bethesda, MD 20892
301-496-1472, Fax: 301-402-3672

Email: lwl7m@nih.gov

NATIONAL INSTITUTE ON ALCOHOL ABUSE AND ALCOHOLISM (NIAAA)

NIAAA supports research on the causes, prevention, control, and treatment of the major health problems
associated with alcohol use. Through its extramural research programs, NIAAA funds a wide range of
basic and applied research to develop new and/or improved technologies and approaches for increasing
the effectiveness of diagnosis, treatment, and prevention. NIAAA also is concerned with strengthening
research dissemination, scientific communications, public education, and data collection activities in the
areas of its research programs.

In addition to Phase | studies in the pursuit of the above aims, NIAAA will also accept Phase Il and Phase
IIB applications. For additional information about areas of interest to the NIAAA, you are invited to visit
our home page at http://www.niaaa.nih.gov.

Limited Amount of Award

For budgetary, administrative, or programmatic reasons, NIAAA may decrease the length of an award
and/or the budget recommended by a review committee, or not fund an application. NIAAA will make
awards compliant with all statutory guidelines as outline above. Total funding support (direct costs,
indirect costs, fee) normally may not exceed $150,000 for one year for Phase | awards and $1,000,000
for up to two years for Phase Il awards. With appropriate justification from the applicant, NIAAA may
consider awards that exceed these amounts by up to 50% ($225,000 for Phase | and $1,500,000 for
Phase Il, a hard cap). Applicants considering a requested budget greater than the standard limits are
strongly encouraged to contact program staff before submitting an application.

Phase 1IB Competing Renewal Awards

NIAAA will accept SBIR/STTR Phase I[IB Competing Renewal grant applications from Phase I
SBIR/STTR awardees to continue the process of developing products that require approval of a Federal
regulatory agency (e.g., FDA, FCC). Such products include, but are not limited to, medical implants,
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drugs, vaccines, and new treatment or diagnostic tools that require FDA approval. This renewal grant
should allow small businesses to get to a stage where interest and investment by third parties is more
likely.

Please contact Dr. Gary Murray (contact information provided below) before beginning the process of
putting an application together. Prospective applicants are strongly encouraged to contact NIH staff prior
to submission of a Competing Renewal application. Prospective applicants are strongly encouraged to
submit to the program contact a letter of intent that includes the following information:

Descriptive title of the proposed research

Name, address, and telephone number of the Principal Investigator
Names of other key personnel

Participating institutions

Funding Opportunity Announcement Number (e.g., PA-12-XXX)

Although a letter of intent is not required, is not binding, and does not enter into the review of a
subsequent application, the information that it contains allows NIH staff to estimate the potential review
workload and plan the review. It is expected that only a portion of NIAAA SBIR/STTR Phase Il awards will
be eligible for a Phase 11B Competing Renewal grant.

The following examples would make appropriate topics for proposed SBIR or STTR Phase |[IB Competing
Renewal projects.

These examples are meant for illustrative purposes and are not exclusive of other appropriate activities:

e Preclinical studies, including pharmacology and toxicology, beyond those conducted under the
Phase | (R43) and initial Phase Il (R44) grants. Some in vivo or in vitro studies would be expected
to have been carried out in Phase | or the initial Phase Il grant.

e Completion of studies as required by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) for Investigational
New Drug (IND) or Radioactive Drug Research Committee (RDRC) application

e Development and clinical evaluation of new alcohol-sensitive biomarkers

o Assessment of devices with regard to performance standards related to the FDA approval
process

e Safety and effectiveness studies of novel medical devices

e Biocompatibility studies of surface materials of putative medical implants

e Evaluation of novel imaging approaches for diagnostic purposes

e Clinical studies in support of New Drug Application approval by the FDA

e Clinical studies in support of Pre-Market Approval for biomarkers/medical devices by the FDA
Direct your questions about scientific/research issues to:

Gary J. Murray, Ph.D.
Phone: 301-443-9940

Fax: 301-594-0673

Email: Gary.Murray@nih.gov
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Pharmaceutical Development for Alcoholism Treatment

The topic focuses on applied and, where appropriate, clinical research on pharmacologic agents for use
in the treatment or medical management of alcoholism, disorders resulting from alcoholism, the
improvement and refinement of drugs currently available for therapeutic purposes, or drugs suitable for
use in basic research studies on alcohol addiction. Areas that may be of interest to small businesses
include, but are not limited to:

A. Development of agents to attenuate drinking behavior, e.g., drugs to curb craving

Development of aversive agents such as disulfiram that can attenuate drinking behavior
Development of agents to treat acute alcohol withdrawal

Development of drugs capable of improving or reversing alcohol-induced cognitive impairments

Development of agents to induce sobriety in intoxicated individuals (i.e., amethystic agents)

nmoow

Development of agents to treat associated psychiatric disorders and/or drug abuse, and to diminish
drinking

G. Development of improved methods of drug delivery for the treatment of alcoholism. The systems
developed must be capable of maintaining therapeutic drug levels for extended periods of time to
alleviate compliance problems.

H. Development of drugs for the treatment of alcoholic hepatitis, liver fibrosis, cirrhosis, pancreatitis,
cardiomyopathy, or other alcohol-induced tissue damage

I.  Research on the pharmacodynamics and pharmacokinetics of concurrent ethanol and other drug
use.

For clinical questions, contact:
Joanne B. Fertig, Ph.D.

301-443-0635
Email: Joanne.Fertig@nih.gov

For pre-clinical questions, contact:

Mark Egli, Ph.D. (Neuroscience and behavior)
301-594-6382
Email: Mark.Egli@nih.gov

Svetlana Radaeva, Ph.D. (Organ damage)
301-433-1189
Email: Svetlana.Radaeva@nih.gov

Diagnostic Assessment of Alcohol Use Disorders and Comorbidity

Innovative self-report and biochemical approaches to the early identification of alcohol use problems and
diagnosis of alcohol use disorders and comorbidity are needed. The research design should include
measurements of reliability and validity in appropriate population samples. Areas that may be of interest
to small businesses include, but are not limited to:

A. Development or adaptation of diagnostic instruments measuring alcohol use disorders and related
comorbid conditions in general population and treated samples, including youth, the elderly,
pregnant women, ethnic minorities, the handicapped, and persons with low-level reading skills).

B. Development and testing of computer algorithms necessary to derive diagnoses of alcohol use
disorders and associated comorbidity.
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C. Development of innovative methods for diagnostic assessment in clinical settings. Development and
testing of detailed audio, visual, or printed training modules to accompany diagnostic instruments.

Cherry Lowman, Ph.D.
301-443-0637
Email: Cherry.Lowman@nih.gov

Treatment of Alcoholism

A. Development and evaluation of innovative therapeutic approaches across the continuum of
alcoholism care.

B. Development and validation of tools to aid in the clinical management of patients, including selection
of appropriate interventions, process evaluation, assessment of outcome, aftercare, and patient
tracking, in various treatment settings.

Cherry Lowman, Ph.D.
301-443-0637
Email: Cherry.Lowman@nih.gov

Prevention

This area of interest focuses on the development and evaluation of innovative prevention and intervention
programs, or specific materials for integration into existing programs, which utilize state-of-the-art
technology and are based on currently accepted clinical and behavioral strategies. Applicants are strongly
encouraged to consult with research methodologists and statisticians to ensure that state-of-the-art
approaches to design, analysis, and interpretation of studies under this topic are used. Areas that may be
of interest to small businesses include, but are not limited to:

A. Development and evaluation of innovative prevention/intervention programs, or specific materials for
integration into existing programs, which utilize state-of-the-art technology and are based on
currently accepted clinical and behavioral strategies. Special emphasis should be placed on the
needs of high-risk groups, ethnic and minority populations, youth, children of alcoholics, women, the
handicapped, and the elderly. Examples of such materials include school-based curricula, interactive
videos, computer-based multimedia programs, training manuals for teachers or parents, and
community-based programs.

B. Development and evaluation of educational materials designed to intervene with the elderly around
specific age-related risks for alcohol problems. Particular attention should be given to age-related
reductions in alcohol tolerance, interactions between alcohol and prescription and over-the-counter
medications, possible exacerbation of some medical conditions common among the elderly,
potential biomedical and behavioral consequences of excessive alcohol use, and the role of alcohol
in falls, fires, burns, pedestrian and traffic injuries, and other unintentional injuries.

C. Development and evaluation of statistical analysis programs tailored to the design and analysis of
alcohol prevention-relevant research. Programs could focus on a variety of areas including:
imputation of missing data under varying design assumptions; simulation of distributions of
outcomes based on varying mixtures of sample populations; application of chronic or infectious
disease models to targeted communities; and models of the potential effect of various policy-based
interventions, such as increased taxation or reduction of outlet density by license revocation and
control.

Robert C. Freeman, Ph.D.
301-443-8820
Email: Robert.Freeman@nih.gov
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Health Services Research on Alcohol-Related Problems

Research projects are sought that will expand knowledge and improve delivery of alcohol treatment and
prevention services. The research objectives include, but are not limited to, the effects of organizational
structures and financing mechanisms on the availability, accessibility, utilization, delivery, content, quality,
outcomes, and costs of alcohol treatment services. Objectives also include studying the effectiveness and
cost-effectiveness of alcohol prevention services in reducing the demand for health care services and
improving the methodological tools useful for conducting health services research. Areas that may be of
interest to small businesses include, but are not limited to:

A. Development and assessment of protocols to assist in the identification, recruitment, and selection of
treatment personnel to enhance the matching of staff to program needs.

B. Development and assessment of computer software or other protocols to assist in the management
of treatment delivery. Software should be useful for assessment, diagnosis, patient placement
criteria, monitoring of services received, tracking patient progress, and billing.

C. Development and assessment of software to assist clinicians in scoring and assessment of score
norms for commonly used assessment instruments. These packages should include protocols for
guiding client feedback in a clinic or office-based setting.

D. Development and assessment of software or other protocols to assist treatment programs and
service agencies in measuring, assessing, or otherwise documenting clinically relevant performance
indicators or improvements in quality of service provision.

E. Development and assessment of protocols to facilitate the selection, implementation, adoption, and
maintenance of evidence-based services consistent with target population need, staffing and
program resources, and expected outcomes. These protocols should be flexible enough to work
across a variety of settings and modalities.

F. Development and assessment of software or other protocols to facilitate the incorporation of
screening and identification tools into routine usage in primary care, emergency, obstetric, mental
health, and other health care settings. Research projects should facilitate both the provisions of brief
interventions, medical management, effective referral to specialized alcohol treatment, and follow-

up.

G. Development and assessment of software or other protocols for monitoring service costs of alcohol
treatment services including core, ancillary, out-sourced services. These tools should provide a user-
friendly system of monitoring costs that could be implemented without additional accounting
expertise by the staff at a typical treatment setting. At the same time, such tools should be
defensible as measures of the true opportunity costs of providing alcohol treatment services. Such
software might be bundled with billing software.

Robert Huebner, Ph.D.
301-443-4344
Email: Bob.Huebner@nih.gov

Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD) and Alcohol-Related Birth Defects

FASD is the collective term for the broad array of documented adverse effects resulting from in utero
alcohol exposure. The most serious of these is fetal alcohol syndrome (FAS), a devastating
developmental disorder characterized by craniofacial abnormalities, growth retardation, and nervous
system impairments that may include mental retardation. Other diagnostic categories include partial FAS,
alcohol-related neurodevelopmental disorder (ARND), and alcohol-related birth defects (ARBD). Children
and adults with FASD may exhibit multiple cognitive, behavioral, and emotional deficits that impair daily
functioning in many domains. The NIAAA supports research leading to improved diagnosis and
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assessment of impairment and disability, as well as the development of tools to enhance academic and
daily living skills. Areas that may be of interest to small businesses include, but are not limited to:

A.

G.

H.

Development and assessment of diagnostic and/or screening methods that can be used prenatally
to identify fetuses affected by ethanol.

Development and validation of biomarkers that can be used to verify prenatal alcohol exposure in
neonates.

Development and validation of assessment methods to provide more accurate clinical diagnosis of
FASD at all life stages.

Development and testing of skill-building, therapeutic, and education program products that enhance
the social, cognitive, adaptive and motor abilities of individuals with FASD.

Development of neurobehavioral tools or instruments to assess responsiveness of individuals with
FASD to medications and/or cognitive/behavioral therapies.

Development of accurate measures of the responsiveness of children affected by prenatal exposure
to alcohol to stress and predictors of vulnerability to alcohol-drinking or other psychopathology
during adolescence and adulthood.

Development and evaluation of educational and training programs designed to enhance the skills of
non-professional caregivers in dealing with the problems associated with FAS.

Development and validation of innovative approaches to prevent harmful drinking during pregnancy.

For basic research questions, contact:

Dale Hereld, MD, Ph.D.
301-443-0912
Email: Dale.Hereld@nih.gov

William C. Dunty, Ph.D.
301-443-7351
Email: William.Dunty@nih.gov

For prevention research questions, contact:

Marcia Scott, Ph.D.
301-402-6328
Email: Marcia.Scott@nih.gov

Alcohol Use and HIV, HBV, or HCV Infection

Alcohol use, including hazardous drinking, by persons infected with HIV, HBV, and HCV, is quite common
in the United States. Alcohol consumption is widely acknowledged as a co-factor in the sexual
transmission, susceptibility to infection, and progression of the infectious diseases. However, detailed
relationships between alcohol use and viral infections, diseases progression, antiretroviral therapy and
adverse outcomes, notably in liver disease progression, are less recognized or understood. Recent
research indicates that inflammatory pathways predominate in alcoholic hepatitis whereas adaptive
immunity plays a primary role in viral hepatitis, offering multiple targets for novel preventive and
therapeutic interventions. Comprehensive studies to improve understanding of the factors underlying
alcohol and viral etiologies in liver disease and the impact of antiretroviral drugs on liver disease
progression are needed. A better understanding of alcohol’s effects on liver disease in patients with
HIV/HBV/HCYV infection may improve diagnosis and treatment outcomes. NIAAA supports research
leading to improved diagnosis and treatment of alcohol-induced disorders in people infected with HIV,
HBV, or HCV.
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Areas that may be of interest to small businesses include, but are not limited to:

A. New preventive and therapeutic approaches designed to protect the liver from alcohol and
antiretroviral drug-induced liver injury in patients infected with HIV, HBV, or HCV.

B. Development of therapies aimed at molecular targets that play a role in the development of alcoholic
and viral liver diseases.

C. Develop and evaluate drugs that mitigate the effects of oxidative stress on mitochondrial function
thereby preventing liver disease progression.

D. Development of biomarkers for individuals who are most prone to alcohol-induced damage in those
patients infected with HIV, HBV, or HCV.

For HBV/HCV and basic research questions on HIV, contact:
H. Joe Wang, Ph.D.

301-451-0747
Email: He.Wang@nih.gov

For clinical or epidemiological questions on HIV, contact:

Kendall J. Bryant, Ph.D.
301-402-9389
Email: Kendall.Bryant@nih.gov

Research Tools

The NIAAA supports the development of new or improved tools to enhance the ability to conduct alcohol-
related laboratory studies on humans and animals and to more effectively analyze data from large
databases. Examples include transgenic animal models, cell lines, new ligands for neuroimaging, and
simulators of alcohol impairment. Areas that may be of interest to small businesses include, but are not
limited to:

A. Development of novel animal models, including transgenic animals, possessing specific traits of
significance for the study of alcoholism, or for the study of specific pathologic disease states which
arise from excessive alcohol consumption.

B. Development of a hepatocyte cell line capable of maintaining viability and metabolic functions in
culture systems for an indefinite period.

C. Development of new methods of ethanol administration to animals that produce precise dose control
or that closely mimic types of alcohol exposure occurring in humans, including, but not limited to,
binge drinking, acute consumption, moderate consumption and chronic consumption.

D. Development of specialized cell culture chambers to provide controlled administration of ethanol to
in vitro cell systems.

E. Development of ligands which will enhance the potential usefulness of PET and SPECT imaging
technologies for the study of the etiology of alcoholism and related brain pathology.

F. Development of genetic, epigenetic, genomic, proteomic, metabolomic, lipidomic, glycomic or other
systems-wide methods for assessment, prognosis, diagnosis or treatment of alcohol-induced
disorders.

G. Development of computational, statistical or bioinformatics tools to organize and manage high
throughput data obtained by genomic, functional genomic or other ‘omic strategies.

H. Development of databases, methods for integration of databases, or data analysis systems for
alcohol research.
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Kathy Jung, Ph.D.
301-443-8744
Email: Mary.Jung@nih.gov

Development of Biomolecular Signatures of Alcohol Exposure and Alcohol-induced Tissue Injury

Acute and chronic alcohol consumption leads to health-related complications and ultimately to significant
societal costs. Quantitative and qualitative markers of high-risk drinking behavior and alcohol-induced
tissue damage would greatly improve medical efforts to recognize and treat alcohol-related disorders.
Traditional biomarkers currently in clinical use lack specificity, sensitivity, and accuracy, and fail to provide
long-term information. Biomarkers of sufficient reliability, sensitivity and specificity are likely to be
comprised of a panel of physiological parameters, rather than a single molecular entity. Thus, NIAAA
seeks to support the discovery and development of pattern-based molecular fingerprints or signatures of
alcohol consumption and of alcohol-induced tissue injury. High throughput approaches using genomics,
epigenomics, transcriptomics, proteomics, metabolomics, lipomics, or glycomics are encouraged.
Biomarker signatures may be composed of multiple genes, RNAs, microRNAs, proteins, or metabolites,
or combinations thereof. Furthermore, alterations in lipid, lipoprotein, or glycoprotein profiles may reflect
the metabolic effects of alcohol exposure and may be considered as potentially predictive. Biomarker
signatures that address multiple aspects of alcohol consumption and alcohol damage are needed. These
include, but are not limited to:

A. Biomarkers of long-term alcohol consumption. A biomarker panel reflecting the cumulative intake of
alcohol over a period of months or more would be of great diagnostic use, both in terms of
recognizing problem drinking and in terms of the potential for organ damage.

B. Biomarkers that distinguish between binge, acute, moderate and chronic drinking. Each of these
modes of alcohol intake has different physiological effects. The ability to distinguish dose and timing
of drinking would enhance clinicians’ ability to design appropriate treatment and intervention
protocols.

C. Biomarkers of compliance after withdrawal. Biomarker signatures in this class would be comprised of
metabolic products that decrease rapidly upon abstinence, in contrast to the characteristics of
biomarkers that reflect cumulative alcohol. The ability to detect relapse accurately will support
successful behavioral interventions.

D. Biomarker signatures of alcohol-induced organ damage. The damage due to alcohol consumption is
likely to be organ-specific, with signatures reflecting alcohol-induced damage likely to be different for
heart damage, liver damage, encephalopathy, a dysregulated immune system, or other alcohol
target.

E. Biomarker signatures of familial risk factors for alcoholism. Early identification of subjects
predisposed to alcoholism will allow for early intervention, and allow subjects to make informed
decisions.

Kathy Jung, Ph.D.
301-443-8744
Email: Mary.Jung@nih.gov

Alcohol Biosensors and Data Analysis Systems

It is anticipated that innovative and improved alcohol sensors would be useful in a variety of situations
including, but not limited to, clinical monitoring, forensics and human or animal research. Specific sensor
characteristics would complement their intended use. This applies to characteristics such as sampling
frequency, degree of accuracy, data storage capacity and data transmission frequency.
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Depending on their intended purpose and use, alcohol sensors may be augmented with additional
information such as other physiological measurements or geospatial determinations. Devices need to be
compatible with human comfort, and devices to be worn for weeks or months may present particular
challenges. Since alcohol readings are likely to be baseline most of the time, these sensing devices
generally require ways to monitor contact and readiness to record. Moreover, where necessary,
measurement fidelity should be robust to subject's activities including active efforts at tampering.

The mode of data storage will need to conform to power limitations and strategies for data transmission
which may require telemetry.

In addition to alcohol monitoring and data transmission this program also includes the opportunity to
develop appropriate data analysis systems. Examples include: estimating blood alcohol concentrations,
reconstructing patterns of alcohol consumption, and monitoring large numbers of devices to identify
significant, but infrequent, events while minimizing false positives.

Kathy Jung, Ph.D.
301-443-8744
Email: Mary.Jung@nih.gov

P.J. Brooks, Ph.D.
301-4012-0883
Email: PJ.Brooks@nih.gov

Clinical Testing of Biochemical Markers

The development of effective biochemical markers represents a powerful means for early diagnosis and
treatment of alcohol dependent/abuse patients and for the identification of individuals who have a
predisposition for alcoholism. There are two different types of biochemical markers: trait markers and
state markers.

Trait biomarkers have the ability to detect inborn characteristics of individuals who are vulnerable for
alcoholism. This type of marker would be invaluable for screening of high-risk individuals (e.g., children of
alcoholics) and targeting them with preventive or early treatment interventions. In addition, trait markers
might assist practitioners in identifying subpopulations of alcoholics who may need different treatment
strategies. An ideal trait marker should have several features. First, it should display validity in detecting
people susceptible to alcoholism, particularly before the onset of alcoholism or during periods of stable
abstinence. Second, it should be easily and reliably measured. Third, it should be specific for alcoholism
only and not affected by other medical or psychiatric disorders or drugs. Since alcoholism is a complex
disease, it is likely that more than one type of gene and protein exist as trait marker.

State markers or markers of alcohol consumption serve several important purposes. First, they can assist
physicians in diagnosing individuals with chronic drinking problems, particularly patients who deny
excessive drinking. Moreover, they may also identify individuals in early stages of heavy drinking, thus
avoiding the long-term medical, psychological, and social consequences of chronic alcoholism. Second,
state biomarkers can aid in the diagnosis and treatment of other diseases (liver diseases, pancreatitis,
and cardiovascular diseases) that were, at least, caused by excessive drinking. Third, they are useful in
alcohol treatment and prevention programs. Since the goal of many of programs is abstinence, monitoring
relapse is important in gauging success. Last, state biomarkers are important in clinical alcohol trials.
Although self-reports have become more sophisticated and valid (e.g., Timeline Followback), they still rely
on accurate reporting. These new and reliable biomarkers could then be used to confirm the self-report.
Several biomarkers with certain limitations are currently in use including carbohydrate-deficient transferrin
(CDT), gamma-glutamyl transferase (GGT), aspartate aminotransferase (AST), alanine aminotransferase
(ALT), and mean corpuscular volume (MCV). New state markers need to be developed that incorporate
the following attributes: validity, reliability, stability, cost, practicability, acceptability, and transportability.
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Areas that may be of interest to small businesses include, but are not limited to:

A. Develop and evaluate clinically alcohol-sensitive biomarkers to identify individuals who are
predisposed to alcoholism; determine relapse; measure levels of drinking; and determine alcohol-
induced tissue damage.

B. Identify genes, and proteins that are expressed during the development of alcohol dependence for
biomarker development.

C. Develop methodologies for high throughput identification of alcohol metabolites and other signaling
molecules that are expressed during alcohol intake.

D. Use knowledge of genetic and molecular mechanisms underlying alcohol-induced organ damage
(including alcohol-related liver, pancreas, heart disease and FAS) to develop new biomarkers of
tissue and cell damage.

E. Evaluate clinically innovative alcohol-sensitive biomarkers (trait, relapse, organ damage) for
sensitivity and specificity.

Raye Z. Litten, Ph.D.
301-443-0636
Email: Raye.Litten@nih.gov

Stem Cell Research for Alcohol-induced Disorders

Stem cells are master cells in the body and they have the remarkable potential to develop into many
different cell types. Stem cells may become a renewable source of replacement cells to treat alcohol
related diseases. They can also be used to study disease processes, and to develop new and more
effective drugs.

Recent research progress on stem cells has offered great opportunities to study conditions and diseases
related to alcohol abuse and alcoholism. Stem cells can come from embryos or adult tissues. They are
generally categorized into 1) Embryonic stem cells; 2) Induced pluripotent stem cells (iPS cells); and 3)
Adult stem cells. The NIAAA supports SBIR/STTR research using any of these 3 types of stem cell, which
can lead to improved understanding of alcohol related diseases and conditions, and better treatment.

Areas that may be of interest to small businesses include, but are not limited to:

A. Generate and disseminate induced pluripotent stem cells (iPS) from mature human cells to resemble
diverse individual variations regarding alcohol metabolism. Use these genetic variant models to
study alcohol dependence and pharmacotherapy development. Examples of these genetic variations
include Alcohol Dehydrogenase (ADH), Aldehyde Dehydrogenase (ALDH), cytochrome P450
isozyme CYP2EL, and Glutathione S transferase (GST).

B. Generate and disseminate disease-specific iPS cell lines for studies on the biology and signaling
pathways that contribute to the alcohol-related disease pathology.

C. Models derived from human iPS cells to study biological and pathological effects of alcohol and its
metabolites.

Peter Gao, M.D.
301-443-6106
Email: Peter.Gao@nih.gov

Role of non-coding RNAs in the Neuroadaptation to Alcoholism

Gene expression changes after alcohol exposure are well documented. In particular, a vast network of
expression changes is found in the brain (and other tissues) following both acute and chronic alcohol
exposure. These neuroadaptations are thought to underlie tolerance and dependence on alcohol as well
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as mediating the toxic effects of alcohol on neurodevelopment. The discovery of gene expression
regulation mediated by RNA molecules that are transcribed from DNA but do not code for protein, has set
into motion a revolution in molecular biology These novel RNAs are classified broadly as non-coding
RNAs (ncRNASs) and include both small (microRNAs or miRNAs) and large classes (long non-coding
RNAs or IncRNAS) that function to alter the expression of genes to which they bind and modify chromatin
states. Because it is estimated that the majority of the genome consists of non-protein coding regions, of
which ncRNAs make up a substantial portion, understanding how alcohol alters the expression of
ncRNAs and their targets has significant potential for understanding the mechanisms of alcohol
neuroadaptation. However, because of their diverse role in cellular functions and combinatorial
mechanisms of action, many challenges still exist in gaining a full appreciation of the role of ncRNAs in
alcohol neuroadaptation.

NIAAA seeks the development of novel technologies to both measure and interpret ncRNA gene
expression signatures in the brain and/or primary neuronal cultures following alcohol exposure. These
technologies could include, but are not limited to: novel methods to tag and measure ncRNAs, new
imagining techniques to monitor changes in ncRNAs, and novel bioinformatic algorithms to interpret
alcohol-induced alterations in ncRNAs and predict and validate target genes.

Matthew Reilly, Ph.D.

301-594-62228

E-mail: reillymt@mail.nih.gov

In vivo detection of neuromodulators in behaving animals

Neuromodulators, such as neuroimmune factors, modulate a wide range of brain functions and play an
important role in neurodevelopment and synaptic function. To understand how activities of
neuromodulators contribute to alcohol use disorders and how changes at the molecular level link to
behavior, effective tools are needed to detect changes of neuromodulators in real time in the brain of
behaving animals. Currently available methods that measure neuromodulator levels in the CSF fluid
would not allow the analysis of dynamic changes of neuromodulators with spatial and temporal precision.
To facilitate the understanding of how neuromodulators shape neuronal activity and contribute to alcohol
use disorders, more accurate methods of detection are needed.

Recent advances in a variety of in vivo neurotechniques provide a great opportunity to achieve this goal.
For example, cell-based fluorescent reporters, which detect the activity of G protein-coupled receptors
through a fluorescent Ca2+ sensor, can be developed to detect neuromodulators that activate G protein-
coupled receptors, such as chemokines. In addition, in vivo fluorescence imaging using target-activated
small-molecule fluorochromes coupled with nanotechnology may also provide a powerful tool to visualize
neuromodulator changes in the intact brain.

With this SBIR/STTR solicitation, NIAAA seeks the development and application of techniques that can
detect neuromodulator changes in real time with spatial and temporal precision in behaving animals.
Techniques that allow the in vivo detection of neuromodulators over an extended time period, such as
implantable cell- or probe-based biosensors, will be particularly encouraged.

Changhai Cui, Ph.D.
301-443-1678
Email: Changhai.Cui@nih.gov

Ex vivo Efficacy Screens to Identify Pharmacotherapies for Alcohol Dependence

High throughput screening efforts have identified many small molecules acting at biological targets
thought to be important modulators of excessive alcohol drinking and other alcohol dependence
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phenotypes. Concurrently, in vivo animal models of alcohol drinking and related behavioral measures are
currently used to assess potential therapeutic efficacy of medications under development. Ex vivo efficacy
screens are an important link between these two activities. In contrast to many behavioral models, ex vivo
tissue-based assays are desirable for their simplicity, speed, and capacity to test small drug quantities. To
date little attention has been devoted toward developing and validating neuronal tissue and cell based
screening platforms that can be used to inform go/no go decisions for subsequent in vivo preclinical
efficacy testing.

With this SBIR/STTR grant solicitation, NIAAA seeks the development and validation of ex vivo screens
capable of predicting efficacy test results in preclinical behavioral models of alcohol dependence. Such
assays may include arrays of parameters capable of differentiating the alcohol dependant from the non-
dependent state. They should also discriminate positive and negative control drugs found in the alcohol
dependence pharmacotherapy literature and be sensitive to drugs with diverse mechanisms of action. In
addition, the assays developed under this solicitation should be relatively rapid, simple and produce
consistent and reliable results in multiple laboratories.

Mark Egli, Ph.D.
301-594-6382
Email: Mark.Egli@nih.gov

Changhai Cui, Ph.D.
301-443-1678
Email: Changhai.Cui@nih.gov

Develop Network Pharmacology Strategy for Preclinical Medication Development

The frequent failure of using highly selective drugs for disease treatment has challenged the concept of
“one gene, one drug and one disease” and led to the emergence of a new paradigm, network
pharmacology, as a drug development and treatment strategy. This strategy combines the knowledge of
biological networks with multiple drug targets to simultaneously regulate multiple pathways perturbed by
disease conditions. Given the multi-target nature of alcohol action, alcoholism arises from brain network
perturbation. The network pharmacology/combined pharmacological approach, either using drug
combinations or multi-target drugs, may serve as an effective strategy for the treatment of alcohol-
induced brain dysfunction and behavior disorders.

NIAAA seeks preclinical development of combined pharmacological approaches to synergistically
regulate multiple drug targets for alcoholism. Areas that may be of interest to small businesses include,
but are not limited to:

Objective 1:  Develop and validate new target combinations using cellular and animal models.

Objective 2:  Prioritize multi-drug targets and identify the effective drug combinations or multi-target
drugs for the medication development.

Objective 3:  Use high-throughput screening of compound libraries to identify multi-target drugs.

Objective 4: Encourage adaption of low throughput assays to high throughput screening,
development of lead compounds, and identification of drug candidate(s) with proper
pharmaceutical properties for medication development.

Changhai Cui, Ph.D.
301-443-1678
Email: Changhai.Cui@nih.gov

Other Research Topic(s) Within the Mission of the Institute

For additional information on research topics, contact:
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Gary J. Murray, Ph.D.

National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism
5635 Fishers Lane, Room 2037

Bethesda, MD 20892-9304

For Federal Express delivery, use:

Rockville, MD 20852-1705

Phone: 301-443-9940

Email: Gary.Murray@nih.gov

For administrative and business management questions, contact:

Ms. Judy Fox

Grants Management Officer

National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism
Phone: 301-443-4704, Fax: 301-443-3891

Email: Judy.Fox@nih.gov

NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF ALLERGY AND INFECTIOUS DISEASES (NIAID)

The NIAID's Division of AIDS, Division of Allergy, Immunology, and Transplantation, and Division of
Microbiology and Infectious Diseases fund SBIR/STTR grants on topics related to their mission and
activities as described below. Questions on specific research areas may be addressed to the NIAID
Program Officials listed below. General questions on the NIAID SBIR and STTR programs and on
administrative and business management may be addressed to contacts listed for the NIAID section.
When possible, applicants are encouraged to use email for communication.

For information about NIAID's Small Business Programs, please visit
http://www.niaid.nih.gov/researchfunding/sb/pages/default.aspx.

Limited Total Amounts for Phase | and Phase Il Awards

Congress raised the “normal” SBIR and STTR awards to $150,000 for Phase | and $1 million for Phase Il
(total costs for all years of an award). With appropriate applicant justification, Congress allowed awards
to exceed these amounts, but only by 50%, i.e., up to $225,000 for Phase | and $1.5 million for Phase |l
(budget caps). Note that these budget caps are considerably lower than NIAID has allowed in prior years.
Awards can only exceed these budget caps if NIH submits a justification to the Small Business
Administration (SBA) and the SBA approves the higher award. Applicants requesting awards
greater than these budget caps may have their funding delayed and their budgets negotiated
downward. For more information, contact NIAID staff at the email addresses below.

Phase 1IB SBIR Competing Renewal Awards

The NIAID will accept Phase 11B SBIR Competing Renewal grant applications to continue the process of
developing products that require approval of a regulatory agency (e.g., FDA). Projects that are particularly
encouraged include those in the NIAID Small Business High Priority Areas of Interest
(http://www.niaid.nih.gov/researchfunding/sb/pages/shirareas.aspx). NIAID will not accept Phase 11B
STTR Competing Renewal applications.

NIAID will accept Phase 1IB SBIR Competing Renewal applications for a project period of two years and a
budget not to exceed a total cost of $1.5 million for the total Phase IIB award (including direct cost, F&A,
and fee/profit).

The total amount of all consultant costs and contractual costs normally may not exceed 50% of the total
costs requested for initial SBIR Phase Il applications. NIAID SBIR Phase 1IB Competing Renewal grant
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applications may exceed this guideline, however, when well justified and when those costs are necessary
to support preclinical studies and related expenses. Examples of well-founded reasons for exceeding this
guideline include, but are not limited to, subcontracts for safety, toxicity, or efficacy testing in animals, and
subcontracts to assure compliance with Good Manufacturing Practices expectations of the FDA.

Human clinical trials may not be a component of proposed SBIR or STTR research. See Notice of NIAID
Policy on investigator initiated clinical trials at http://grants.nih.gov/grants/quide/notice-files/NOT-Al-10-
024.html. Small business applicants are encouraged to contact relevant program officers (below) to
discuss NIAID funding for human clinical trials.

NIAID does NOT request a letter of intent for Phase IIB Competing Renewal Applications. For more
information about NIAID small business awards, please visit our web page:

http://www.niaid.nih.gov/researchfunding/sb/Pages/default.aspx

You can also contact a program officer listed below within a relevant area of interest.

Division of AIDS

The Division of AIDS (DAIDS) supports research on the pathogenesis, natural history, and transmission
of HIV and HIV disease, and promotes progress in its detection, treatment, and prevention.

Director: Dr. Carl Dieffenbach
301-496-0545

Email: cd17u@nih.gov
BASIC SCIENCES PROGRAM

Supports basic and applied research on the causes, diagnosis, treatment and prevention of HIV and
AIDS.

Contact: Dr. Diana Finzi
301.451.2598
Email: Dfinzi@niaid.nih.gov

A. Epidemiology Branch. Population-based research, modeling, and comparative effectiveness
studies (not including clinical trials) that assess the natural history, biologic, and clinical course of
HIV/AIDS, and related outcomes, and could advance treatment and prevention of HIV. Specific
interests include factors related to HIV transmission and associated biological and behavioral
factors, basic research on immunology, virology, and antiretroviral therapy, issues surrounding care
for HIV and other co-morbidities, interactions and impact on clinical outcomes. Development of novel
electronic tools, including devices and computer programs to enhance behaviors such as treatment
adherence or uptake of treatment guidelines, is also of interest.

Contact: Joana Roe
301-435-3759

Email: jr108r@nih.gov

B. Basic Research Branch. Identification and characterization of potential targets for discovery or
design of novel strategies to impact HIV transmission, virus-host interactions, host restriction factors,
chronic immune activation, and HIV latency/persistence. Innovative approaches for monitoring or
studying HIV infection, immunopathogenesis, and viral reservoirs that persist despite antiretroviral
therapy. Development of assays and technologies involving nanotechnology and single-cell analysis
is of particular interest.
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Contact: Dr. Karl Salzwedel
301-496-5332
Email: salzwedelkd@niaid.nih.gov

C. Targeted Interventions Branch. Research areas: (1) targeted therapeutics emphasizing under-
explored viral and cellular targets; (2) innovative therapeutic strategies including immune-based and
gene-based therapies and therapeutic vaccines; (3) translational research for effective therapeutics;
(4) animal models for evaluating new therapeutic entities, regimens, and strategies; and (5)
therapeutic approaches using nanotechnology.

Contact: Dr. Roger Miller
301-496-6430

Email: rm42i@nih.gov
VACCINE RESEARCH PROGRAM
Supports the development of vaccines to prevent AIDS.

Director: Dr. Mary Marovich
301.435.3727
Email: mary.marovich@nih.gov

A. Vaccine Clinical Research and Development Branch. Research areas: (1) phase I, Il, and IlI
domestic and international clinical trials of candidate AIDS vaccines; (2) characterization of immune
responses in HIV-infected and uninfected immunized volunteers, using micro and macro assays;
and (3) studies to identify, validate, and standardize immunologic and virologic markers for
monitoring response of participants in vaccine clinical trials.

Contact: Dr. Jim Lane
301-451-2758
Email: laneji@mail.nih.gov

B. Preclinical Research and Development Branch. Preclinical development of candidate AIDS
vaccines, delivery methods, novel vaccine vectors, and adjuvants for the prevention of AIDS;
promotion and evaluation of safety and efficacy of the prevention modalities, especially novel
vaccine concepts identified in preclinical models including studies in non-human primates; genetic
and immunologic variation; and mucosal immunity in SIV, HIV, and SHIV models.

Contact: Dr. Yen Li
301-496-3816
Email: yli@niaid.nih.gov

THERAPEUTICS RESEARCH PROGRAM

Develops and oversees research and development of therapies for HIV disease, including complications,
co-infections, co-morbidities and cancers, in adults, infants, children, and adolescents.

Director: Dr. Sarah Read
301-451-2757
Email: readsa@niaid.nih.gov

A. Drug Development and Clinical Sciences Branch. Discovery and preclinical development of
experimental therapies for HIV, TB and other infectious diseases; maintenance of a database of
potential anti-HIV and anti-opportunistic infection compounds; immunologic, virologic, and
pharmacologic research related to the design and conduct of clinical trials.

Chief: Dr. Mike Ussery
301-402-0134
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Email: mussery@niaid.nih.gov

B. HIV Research Branch. Clinical research of strategies to treat adult primary HIV infection and
complications; strategies to augment HIV immune responses and general host immunity.

Contact: Tia Morton
301-435-3763
Email: frazierti@niaid.nih.gov

C. Complications & Co-Infections Research Branch. Preclinical and clinical research to develop
new or improved therapies for the treatment and prophylaxis of Pneumocystis Pneumonia,
Mycobacterium avium Complex,, and cryptococcosis.

Contact: Dr. Chris Lambros
301-435-3769
Email: clambros@niaid.nih.gov

For evaluation of therapeutic agents or diagnostics for hepatitis B or hepatitis C secondary to
HIV infection in adults.

Contact: Dr. Susan Brobst
301-435-3762
Email: sbrobst@niaid.nih.gov

D. Maternal, Adolescent and Pediatric Medicine Branch. HIV therapies in pregnant women, infants,
children and adolescents and HIV-associated complications. Strategies to reduce HIV transmission
from mother to child.

Contact: Judi Miller, R.N.
301-496-1189
Email: jmillera@niaid.nih.gov

E. Tuberculosis Clinical Research Branch. Clinical research for tuberculosis, with and without HIV
co-infection, to facilitate the development of biomarkers/diagnostics, therapies, and
prevention/vaccines.

Contact: Sharon D. Williams
301-451-2616
Email: SW386Z@nih.gov

PREVENTION SCIENCE PROGRAM

Supports basic research on mechanisms of HIV transmission supportive of new biomedical strategies for
interrupting transmission. Domestic and international phase I, I, and Il clinical trials to evaluate HIV/AIDS
prevention strategies, including microbicides, chemoprophylactic agents, and other biomedical and
behavioral risk reduction interventions.

Acting Director: Sheryl Zwerski, MSN, CRNP
301-402-4032
Email: szwerski@niaid.nih.gov

A. Preclinical Microbicides and Prevention Research Branch. Preclinical pipeline for non-vaccine
biomedical prevention products including topical microbicides, pre-exposure prophylaxis (PrEP) and
multipurpose prevention technologies (MPT). Iterative approaches of existing and emerging
technologies into a translational pipeline to select and advance the most promising candidates to
clinical evaluation.

Chief: Dr. Jim Turpin
301-451-2732
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Email: jturpin@niaid.nih.gov

B. Clinical Microbicide Research Branch. Clinical development of promising microbicides to prevent
HIV infection with the ultimate goal to advance safe, effective and acceptable microbicide products
toward licensure.

Chief: Dr. Roberta Black
301-496-8199
Email: rblack@niaid.nih.gov

C. Clinical Prevention Research Branch. Development of safe and effective non- vaccine biomedical
and integrated HIV prevention interventions to reduce the number of new HIV infections in adults
and adolescents. Support the development of HIV incidence assays, biomarkers of adherence, and
mathematical modeling.

Chief: Dr. David Burns
301-435-8896
Email: burnsda@niaid.nih.gov

Division of Allergy, Immunology, and Transplantation

The Division of Allergy, Immunology, and Transplantation (DAIT) supports studies of the immune system
in health and the cause, pathogenesis, diagnosis, prevention, and treatment of disease caused by
immune dysfunction.

Director: Daniel Rotrosen, M.D.
301-496-1886
Email: drotrosen@niaid.nih.gov

A. Allergy, Asthma and Airway Biology Branch. Conditions of interest: asthma, food
allergy, eosinophilic esophagitis and gastroenteritis in relation to food allergy, atopic
dermatitis, urticaria, rhinitis, rhinosinusitis, drug allergy, sepsis. The Branch supports basic and
clinical studies investigating mechanisms of disease and new approaches to diagnose, treat or
prevent these conditions. Special interest for SBIR/STTR includes the development of
methodologies to manage, and analyze clinical and epidemiologic research in the above conditions
and the development of biomarkers as diagnostic markers, markers of disease severity, predictive
markers for treatment effectiveness, particularly of immunologic interventions such as allergen
immunotherapy for food and respiratory allergy.

Interim Branch Chief: Daniel Rotrosen, M.D
301-496-1886
Email: drotrosen@niaid.nih.gov

B. Basic Immunology Branch. Origin, maturation, and interactions of immune cells, immune cell
receptors, ligands, cytokine biology, molecular basis of activation, antigen recognition, immune
tolerance, immune response regulation, hematopoiesis and stem cell biology, enhancement of
vaccine effectiveness in neonates and adults, and basic immunology of vaccines and
immunotherapeutics as medical countermeasures for biodefense.

Chief: Dr. Helen Quill
301-496-7551, Fax: 301-480-2381
Email: hquill@niaid.nih.gov

C. Autoimmunity and Mucosal Immunology Branch. Preclinical and clinical research to develop and
improve therapies for the treatment of autoimmune diseases, primary immune deficiencies (not HIV),
basic research of disease mechanisms, and biomarkers, immunotherapy of disease processes,
disorders mediated by lymphocyte products, and mucosal immunity.
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Chief: Dr. James McNamara
301-451-3121, Fax: 301-480-1450
Email: jmcnamara@niaid.nih.gov

D. Transplantation Immunobiology Branch. Preclinical and clinical research in: acute and chronic
graft rejection, allogeneic and xenogeneic transplantation, development of immunomodulatory
agents to prevent and treat graft rejection, genomics of the alloimmune response, graft versus host
disease and engraftment for hematopoietic stem cell transplantation, , minor histocompatibility
antigens, infectious and malignant complications of immunosuppression in transplantation, and
major histocombatibility complex (MHC) region genomics and technologies for MHC typing.

Chief: Dr. Nancy Bridges
301-496-5598
Email: nbridges@niaid.nih.gov

D. Radiation Countermeasures Program. ldentification and evaluation of medical counter measures
(MCMs) for public health radiation emergencies through the development of mitigators and
therapeutics for acute radiation syndrome or the delayed effects of acute radiation exposure;
radionuclide-specific therapies, including chelating agents, blocking agents, and other novel
decorporation agents; improved methods of accurate and high-throughput radiation biodosimetry and
bioassay for radionuclide contamination; biomarkers of organ-specific radiation injury; therapeutics for
radiation combined injury; therapeutics for radiation-induced immunosenescence, formulations for
pediatric administration.

Chief: Dr. Bert Maidment
301-594-0641
Email: maidmentb@niaid.nih.gov

Division of Microbiology and Infectious Diseases

The Division of Microbiology and Infectious Diseases (DMID) supports research to better understand,
treat, and ultimately prevent infectious diseases caused by virtually all infectious agents, except HIV.
DMID supports a broad spectrum of research from basic molecular structure, microbial physiology and
pathogenesis, to the development of new and improved vaccines and therapeutics. DMID also supports
medical diagnostics research, which is defined as research to improve the quality of patient assessment
and care that would result in the implementation of appropriate therapeutic or preventive measures. DMID
does not support research directed at decontamination or the development of environmentally oriented
detectors, whose primary purpose is the identification of specific agents in the environment. Note that
some of the organisms and toxins listed below are considered NIAID priority pathogens or toxins for
biodefense and emerging infectious disease research.

Director: Dr. Carole Heilman
301-496-1884

Email: ch25v@nih.gov
A. Bacteriology and Mycology Branch.

The branch oversees research on medical mycology, hospital infections (including Acinetobacter,
Klebsiella, Serratia, Legionella, Pseudomonas, Aeromonas, Enterobacter, Proteus, non-enteric E.
coli, actinomycetes and others), staphylococci, enterococci, bacterial zoonoses (plague, anthrax,
tularemia, glanders, melioidosis, Lyme disease, rickettsial diseases, anaplasmosis, ehrlichiosis and
Q fever), and leptospirosis. Research is encouraged in the following general areas: (1) product
vaccines, adjuvants, therapeutics and diagnostics (including target identification and
characterization, device or apparatus development, novel delivery, and preclinical evaluation); (2)
products to combat antibacterial and antifungal drug resistance; (3) applied proteomics and
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genomics; (4) host-pathogen interactions, including pathogenesis and host response; (5) genetics,
molecular, and cell biology; and (6) microbial structure and function.

Research in the following areas is of particular interest to the branch, but research on all of the
above is welcome:

Vaccines, therapeutics, and medical diagnostics for hospital infections
Adjunctive therapies to combat antimicrobial resistance

Diagnostics for aspergillosis

Novel approaches for the diagnosis of Lyme disease

Contact: Dr. Alec Ritchie
301-402-8643, Fax: 301-402-2508
Email: aritchie@niaid.nih.gov

B.

Enteric and Hepatic Diseases Branch.

Special emphasis areas include vaccines against hepatitis C virus; antimicrobials and antivirals that
focus on novel targets such as host-pathogen interactions to combat the development of resistance;
vaccines and therapies for botulinum neurotoxins, especially therapies that that target toxins once
they enter cells; therapies and diagnostics for Clostridium difficile that include recurrent disease
issues; development of a simple, rapid point-of-care diagnostic tools for the simultaneous
identification of multiple diarrheal pathogens that includes their antibiotic resistance profiles;
diagnostics for use in low-resource settings, pediatric vaccines to prevent the major worldwide
causes of diarrhea; more fieldable vaccines and improved formulation methods; and novel
therapeutics for chronic hepatitis B and C.

Research areas of the Branch include the following organisms and diseases: astrovirus, Bacteroides
spp., Campylobacter spp., enteric Clostridia spp. including botulinum neurotoxins, commensals and
normal flora, pathogenic Escherichia coli, gastroduodenal disease, gastroenteritis, Helicobacter spp.,
Listeria spp., Noroviruses including Norwalk, ricin toxin, rotaviruses, Salmonella serovars, Shigella
spp., Staphylococcus enterotoxin B, Vibrio spp. enteric Yersinia spp., hepatitis viruses A, B, C, D,
and E, as well as cholera, diarrhea, enterotoxins, gastroenteritis, gastroduodenal disease and ulcers,
and Guillain-Barre syndrome.

Program Contact: Mr.Rodolfo Alarcon
301-451-3022, Fax: 301-402-1456
Email: alarconrm@niaid.nih.gov

C.

Parasitology and International Programs Branch.

Research areas: (1) protozoan infections, including amebiasis, cryptosporidiosis, cyclosporiasis,
giardiasis, leishmaniasis, malaria, trypanosomiasis, toxoplasmosis; helminth infections, including
cysticercosis, echinococcosis, lymphatic filariasis, schistosomiasis, onchocerciasis, others (e.g.,
roundworms, tapeworms, and flukes); invertebrate vectors/ectoparasites, black flies, sandflies,
tsetse flies, mosquitoes, ticks, snails, mites; (2) parasite biology (genetics, genomics, physiology,
molecular biology, and biochemistry); (3) protective immunity, imnmunopathogenesis, evasion of host
responses; (4) clinical, epidemiologic, and natural history studies of parasitic diseases; (5) research
and development of vaccines, drugs, immunotherapeutics, and medical diagnostics, and (6) vector
biology and management; mechanisms of pathogen transmission.

Chief: Dr. Lee Hall
301-496-2544, Fax: 301-402-0659
Email: |hall@niaid.nih.gov

D.

Respiratory Diseases Branch.

NIH, CDC, FDA, and ACF Program Descriptions and Research Topics NIAID 38


mailto:aritchie@niaid.nih.gov
mailto:lhall@niaid.nih.gov

PHS 2013-2, Omnibus Solicitation for SBIR/STTR Grant Applications January 2013

Research areas: (1) viral respiratory diseases caused by influenza viruses, human coronaviruses
including SARS and novel emerging coronaviruses, respiratory syncytial virus and other related
paramyxoviruses; (2) mycobacterial diseases, including tuberculosis, leprosy, Buruli ulcer and non-
tuberculous mycobacterial diseases; (3) other bacterial respiratory diseases including acute otitis
media, community acquired pneumonia, acute exacerbations of chronic obstructive pulmonary
disease, diphtheria, pertussis, acute rhinosinusitis, streptococcal disease; and (4) mixed
viral/bacterial respiratory infections.

Special emphasis areas: development of new or improved antimicrobials and antivirals, including
immunotherapeutics, new or improved vaccines (with and without adjuvants), improved delivery
systems for drugs/vaccines, biomarkers, rapid multiplex diagnostic tests, including low cost point-of-
care, or other tools to detect infection prior to active disease and identify drug resistance. There is
particular need for preventive and treatment countermeasures for influenza, including universal
vaccine platforms and broad-spectrum antivirals, for tuberculosis (TB) diagnostics, including drug
susceptibility tests and novel anti-TB vaccines and antimicrobials, and for new vaccines and
improved treatment options for Streptococcus pneumoniae.

Contact: Dr. Gail Jacobs
301-496-5305, Fax: 301-496-8030
Email: ggjacobs@niaid.nih.gov

E.

Sexually Transmitted Infections Branch.

Areas of emphasis include the development of medical diagnostics including better and more rapid
multiplex point of care tests; diagnostics to rapidly determine antiobiotic sensitivity; novel delivery
systems for topical microbicides, vaccines and therapeutics for sexually transmitted infections
(STIs) and other reproductive tract syndromes, such as bacterial vaginosis and pelvic inflammatory
disease; molecular immunology; vaginal ecology and immunology; epidemiologic and behavioral
research including strategies to reduce transmission of STIs; genomics and proteomics of sexually
transmitted pathogens; adolescents and STls; STls in medically underserved populations and
minority groups; role of STls in infertility, premature birth, and adverse outcomes of pregnancy; role
of STIs in HIV transmission; role of HIV in altering the natural history of STIs; and a better
understanding of other sequellae of STls.

Contact: Elizabeth Rogers
301-451-3742, Fax: 301-480-3617
Email: erogers@niaid.nih.gov

F.

Virology Branch.

Areas of emphasis for SBIR/STTR applications include:1) vaccine development; 2) viral vectors; 3)
structure and function of viruses and viral proteins as targets for therapeutic interventions or
diagnostics; 4) the development and validations of assays for disease diagnosis and to measure
response to therapy; 5) the development and preclinical testing of immunotherapeutic and antiviral
drugs for acute and chronic viral ilinesses; 6) approaches to identify antiviral targets and agents; 7)
chemical design and synthesis of novel antiviral agents; 8) preclinical antiviral evaluations including
in vitro screening and prophylactic or therapeutic antiviral evaluations of human viral infections in
animal models; 9) the development of rapid medical diagnostic systems.

The Virology Branch focuses on the following: acute viral infections (including Nipah and Hendra
viruses), arthropod-borne and rodent-borne viral diseases (including Dengue, West Nile, Japanese
encephalitis, Chikungunya, yellow fever, hantavirus, etc.), viral hemorrhagic fevers (Ebola, Lassa
fever, etc.), measles, polio, coxsackie virus, enterovirus 71 and other enteroviruses, poxviruses,
rabies, and rubella. The Virology Branch also focuses on the following persistent viral diseases and
viruses: adenoviruses, BK virus, bornaviruses, coronaviruses, herpesviruses, human T-
lymphotrophic virus, JC virus, human papillomaviruses, parvoviruses, emerging human
polyomaviruses, and prion diseases. Applications targeting the development of therapies,
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immunotherapies, vaccines and diagnostics for any of these infections are sought. The Virology
Branch does not support applications covering environmental detection and decontamination.

Contact: Dr. Ramya Natarajan
301-594-1586, Fax: 301-402-0659
Email: ramya.natarajan@nih.gov

Other Research Topic(s) Within the Mission of the Institute

Please visit our Small Business High-Priority Areas of Interest:
http://www.niaid.nih.gov/researchfunding/sb/pages/sbirareas.aspx

For additional information about the NIAID SBIR/STTR program contact:

Dr. Paula Strickland
Division of Extramural Activities

National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases
301-435-8563, Fax: 301-480-1993
Email:pstrickland@nih.gov

For administrative and business management questions, contact:

Mr. Michael Wright

Grants Management Specialist

National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases
301-451-2688, Fax: 301-493-0597

Email: mawright@mail.nih.gov

NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF ARTHRITIS AND MUSCULOSKELETAL AND SKIN DISEASES (NIAMS)

The mission of the National Institute of Arthritis and Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases is to support
research into the causes, treatment, and prevention of arthritis and musculoskeletal and skin diseases,
the training of basic and clinical scientists to carry out this research, and the dissemination of information
on research progress in these diseases.

For additional information about areas of interest to the NIAMS, please visit NIAMS Long Range Plan at
http://www.niams.nih.gov/About_Us/Mission_and _Purpose/long_range.asp.

Limited Amount of Award

For budgetary, administrative, or programmatic reasons, NIAMS may decide not to fund an application or
may decrease the length of an award and/or the budget recommended by a review committee. Generally,
NIAMS does not fund Phase | applications with a total cost greater than $225,000 or a project period
greater than 2 years and Phase Il applications with a total cost greater than $1,500,000 or a project
period greater than 3 years. Applicants considering a requested budget greater than these limits are
strongly encouraged to contact program staff before submitting an application. It is not the intent of
NIAMS to support clinical trials through the SBIR/STTR mechanism. Applicants who wish to submit
clinical trials applications to the NIAMS are encouraged to utilize one of the NIAMS FOAs listed HERE.

Arthritis and Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases

A. Division of Skin and Rheumatic Diseases. This division promotes and supports: basic and clinical
studies of the skin in normal and disease states; and research leading to prevention, diagnosis and
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cure of rheumatic and related diseases. In the area of Skin Diseases, the division has a wide range
of skin diseases under study with NIAMS support, to include keratinizing disorders such as psoriasis
and ichthyosis, atopic dermatitis and other chronic inflammatory skin disorders, the vesiculobullous
diseases such as epidermolysis bullosa and pemphigus, acne, and vitiligo. In the area of Rheumatic
Diseases, the division supports basic, epidemiologic, and clinical research on etiology,
pathogenesis, course, interventions, and outcomes in rheumatic and related diseases.

This is not an inclusive list of all research topics covered by the Division of Skin and Rheumatic
Diseases. To learn more, please visit the Division page at
http://www.niams.nih.gov/Funding/Funding_Opportunities/Supported Scientific Areas/Skin Rheum
atic Diseases/default.asp.

B. Division of Musculoskeletal Diseases. The musculoskeletal system is comprised of the skeleton,
which provides mechanical support and determines shape; the muscles, which power movement;
and connective tissues such as tendon and ligament, which hold the other components together.
The cartilage surfaces of joints and the intervertebral discs of the spine allow for movement and
flexibility.

The Division of Musculoskeletal Diseases of the NIAMS supports research aimed at improving the
diagnosis, treatment, and prevention of diseases and injuries of the musculoskeletal system and its
component tissues. Key public health problems addressed by this research include osteoporosis,
osteoarthritis, and muscular dystrophy. Research is conducted at every level, from fundamental
biology to clinical intervention.

This is not an inclusive list of all research topics covered by the Division of Musculoskeletal
Diseases. To learn more, please visit the Division page at
http://www.niams.nih.gov/Funding/Funding_Opportunities/Supported Scientific Areas/Musculoskele
tal Diseases/default.asp.

For general SBIR/STTR program information, contact:

Dr. Xibin Wang, NIAMS SBIR/STTR Coordinator
301-451-3884, Fax: 301-480-1284
Email: wangx1@mail.nih.gov

For administrative and business management questions, contact:

Ms. Sheila Simmons
301-594-9812, Fax: 301-480-5450
Email: simmonss@mail.nih.gov

Mr. Erik (Timothy) Edgerton
301-594-3968, Fax: 301-480-5450
Email: edgertont@mail.nih.gov

NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF BIOMEDICAL IMAGING AND BIOENGINEERING (NIBIB)

The mission of the National Institute of Biomedical Imaging and Bioengineering (NIBIB) is to improve
health by leading the development and accelerating the application of biomedical technologies. The
Institute is committed to integrating the physical and engineering sciences with the life sciences to
advance basic research and medical care. This is achieved through: research and development of new
biomedical imaging and bioengineering techniques and devices to fundamentally improve the detection,
treatment, and prevention of disease; enhancing existing imaging and bioengineering modalities;
supporting related research in the physical and mathematical sciences; encouraging research and
development in multidisciplinary areas; supporting studies to assess the effectiveness and outcomes of
new biologics, materials, processes, devices, and procedures; developing technologies for early disease
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detection and assessment of health status; and developing advanced imaging and engineering
techniques for conducting biomedical research at multiple scales. More specifically, the mission of the
NIBIB includes the following research areas:

A.

Biomaterials. Development of new or novel biomaterials that can be used for a broad spectrum of
biomedical applications such as implantable devices; drug and gene delivery; tissue engineering;
imaging agents; and biosensors and actuators. Research that is supported includes the design,
synthesis, characterization, processing and manufacturing of these materials as well as the design
and development of devices constructed of these materials and their clinical performance.

Biomechanics and Rehabilitation Engineering. Research on biomechanics which can be applied
to a broad range of applications including implants, prosthetics, clinical gait and posture
biomechanics, traumatic injury, repair processes, rehabilitation, sports and exercise, as well as
technology development in other NIBIB interest areas applied towards biomechanics. Rehabilitation
engineering research that is supported includes theoretical models and algorithms for understanding
neural, motor, and robotic control strategies; quantitative analysis algorithms for predicting
therapeutic outcomes; and early stage development of neuroprosthesis technology, virtual
rehabilitation, and robotics rehabilitation.

Biomedical Informatics. Development of new technologies to collect, store, retrieve, and integrate
guantitative data; large-scale data-driven knowledge base and database methods that support data
mining, statistical analysis, systems biology and modeling efforts; and improvement of computer
science methods to protect confidentiality of patient data.

Drug and Gene Delivery Systems and Devices. Development of new and improved technologies
for the controlled and targeted release of therapeutic agents. Areas of emphasis include: the
development of new delivery vehicles such as nanoparticles and micellar systems; energy-assisted
delivery using ultrasound, electroporation, etc.; and the integration of biosensing with controlled
dosage delivery using BioMEMS and other emerging technologies.

Image-Guided Interventions. Research on use of images for guidance, navigation and orientation
in minimally invasive procedures to reach specified targets. Examples include image-guided
interventions for minimally invasive therapies such as surgery and radiation treatment, for biopsies,
and for the delivery of drugs, genes and therapeutic devices.

Image Processing, Visual Perception, and Display. Study, invention, and implementation of
structures and algorithms to improve communication, understanding, and management of
information related to biomedical images. Research that is supported includes software and
hardware for image reconstruction, analysis, display and perception, visualization, and computer-
aided interpretation.

Imaging Agents and Molecular Probes. Development and application of novel imaging agents and
probes for clinical or pre-clinical applications. Examples of supported research include the
development and application of quantum dots, nanoparticles, nanoshells, microbubbles, and radio-
labelled contrast materials, and smart imaging agents that are bio-activatible or activated by other
chemical, physical, or biological means.

Magnetic, Biomagnetic and Bioelectric Devices. Development of magnetic, biomagnetic and
bioelectric devices, e.g., EEG, MEG, etc. Examples include (but are not restricted to) novel
detectors, increased sensitivity and spatial resolution, improved reconstruction algorithms,
multiplexing with other imaging techniques, etc.

Magnetic Resonance Imaging and Spectroscopy. Development of MR imaging and MR
spectroscopic imaging, for both animal and human research, and potential clinical applications.
Examples include (but are not restricted to) fast imaging, high field imaging, design of novel RF and
gradient coils, novel pulse sequences, design of novel contrast mechanisms, imaging informatics, in
vivo EPR imaging, molecular imaging, etc. The emphasis should be on technological development
rather than detailed applications to specific diseases or organs.
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J.  Mathematical Modeling, Simulation and Analysis. Development of mathematical models and
computational algorithms with potential clinical or biomedical applications, including multi-scale
modeling, modeling at or above the cellular level, and modeling at subcellular level, including those
developed to support technology development in other program areas related to the NIBIB mission.
Research that is funded includes studies that focus on the development of algorithms, mathematical
models, simulations and analysis of complex biological, physiological, and biomechanical systems
and use genomics and proteomics.

K. Medical Devices and Implant Science. Design, development, evaluation and validation of medical
devices and implants. This includes exploratory research on next generation concepts for diagnostic
and therapeutic devices; development of tools for assessing host-implant interactions; studies to
prevent adverse events; development of predictive models and methods to assess the useful life of
devices; explant analysis; improved in vitro and animal models for device testing and validation.

L. Micro- and Nano-Systems, Platform Technologies. Development of BioMEMS, microfluidics and
nanoscale technologies, including micro-total analysis systems, arrays, and biochips, for detection
and quantitation of clinically relevant analytes in complex matrices. Application areas include
biomedical research, clinical laboratory diagnostics, biodefense, high-throughput screening, drug
delivery, tissue engineering, and implantable devices, among others.

M. Nanotechnology. Research and development of new enabling technologies for the fabrication and
use of nanoscale components and systems in diagnostic and therapeutic applications. Examples
include: development of new nanoscale patterning and manipulation systems; new approaches to
the sensing and quantification of biologically important molecules using nanoscale specific
properties; studies relating to the safety and commercialization of nanotechnology-enabled
biomedical products.

N. Nuclear Medicine. Research and development of technologies that create images out of the
gamma-ray or positron (and resulting photon) emissions from radioactive agents that are injected,
inhaled, or ingested into the body and then concentrate in specific biological compartments. Two
particularly active areas are the wedding of positron emission tomography (PET) and single photon
emission computed tomography (SPECT) to CT and/or to MRI, and the design of higher resolution,
lower cost PET and SPECT devices for the study of molecular probes in small animals. Other topics
of interest include the development of better radiopharmaceuticals, crystal scintillators, and
collimators, and novel approaches to dual-isotope imaging and to dosimetry.

O. Optical Imaging and Spectroscopy. Development and application of optical imaging, microscopy,
and spectroscopy techniques; and development and application of optical imaging contrasts.
Examples of research areas include fluorescence imaging, bioluminescence imaging, OCT, SHG, IR
imaging, diffuse optical tomography, optical microscopy and spectroscopy, confocal microscopy,
multiphoton microscopy, flow cytometry, development of innovative light sources and fiber optic
imaging devices.

P. Sensors. Development of sensor technologies for the detection and quantitation of clinically relevant
analytes in complex matrices. Application areas include (among others) biomedical research, clinical
laboratory diagnostics, and biodefense, covering in vitro diagnostics, noninvasive monitoring, and
implantable devices. Technologies encompassed include novel signal transduction approaches,
materials for molecular recognition, biocompatibility, signal processing, fabrication technologies,
actuators, and power sources.

Q. Structural Biology. Development of structural biology techniques, including (but not restricted to)
solid state NMR, EPR, synchrotron radiation, etc. The emphasis is on technological development,
rather than applications to specific structural biology problems.

R. Surgical Tools and Techniques. Research and development of new medical technologies to
improve the outcomes of surgical interventions. Examples of relevant technologies include:
minimally invasive surgeries, energy-based interventions such as RF ablation, robotically assisted
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surgical systems, integration of imaging and interventional modalities, image guided interventions
and telehealth.

S. Telehealth. Development of software and hardware for telehealth studies that have broad
applications as well as early stage development of telehealth technologies that may have specific
focus areas. Research that is supported includes methods to address usability and implementation
issues in remote settings, and methods to develop technology for standardizing and incorporating
state of the art security protocols for verifying user identities and preserving patient confidentiality
across remote access.

T. Tissue Engineering and Regenerative Medicine. Development of enabling technologies including
real-time, non-invasive tools for assessing the function of engineered tissues; real-time assays that
monitor the interaction of cells and their environment at the molecular and organelle level; predictive
computational models for engineering function 3D tissues; high-throughput assays and instruments
to reduce the cost, time, and complexity of tissue engineering; novel bioreactor techniques for
expanding stem cells and growing tissues and organs on a large scale; and strategies for
preserving, sterilizing, packaging, and transporting living-tissue products. The program also supports
applications of rational engineering design principles to functional engineered tissues; the
development of novel biomaterials for use as tissue scaffolds that mimic the extracellular matrix and
support multiple cell types in defined spatial orientation; and engineering approaches to study how
biomaterials interact with cells and guide cell growth, differentiation, and migration.

U. Ultrasound. Improvement of technologies for diagnostic, interventional and therapeutic uses of
ultrasound. The diagnostic ultrasound program includes, but is not limited to the design,
development and construction of transducers, transducer arrays, and transducer materials,
innovative image acquisition and display methods, innovative signal processing methods and
devices, and optoacoustic and thermoacoustic technology. It also includes the development of
image-enhancement devices and methods, such as contrast agents, image and data presentation
and mapping methods, such as functional imaging and image fusion. The interventional ultrasound
program includes the use of ultrasound for therapeutic use, or as an adjunct for enhancement of
non-ultrasound therapy applications. Examples include, but are not limited to, high-intensity focused
ultrasound (HIFU) as a non-invasive or minimally invasive interventional surgical or therapy tool, and
as an adjunct interventional tool. It also includes the use of ultrasound contrast agents for therapy
and for targeted drug delivery, and the use of ultrasound for image-guided surgery, biopsy, and other
interventions.

V. X-ray, Electron, and lon Beam. Enhancement of computed tomography (CT), computed
radiography (CR), digital radiography (DR), digital fluoroscopy (DF), and related modalities.
Research areas of support include the development of: flat panel detector arrays and other detector
systems; flat-panel CT; CT reconstruction algorithms for the cone-beam geometry of multi-slice CT,;
approaches to radiation dose reduction, especially with CT; and novel x-ray applications, such as
those utilizing scattered radiation, tissue-induced x-ray phase shifts, etc.

For additional information on research topics, contact:

Mr. Todd Merchak

National Institute of Biomedical Imaging and Bioengineering
301-496-8592, Fax: 301-480-1614

Email: merchakt@mail.nih.gov

For administrative and business management questions, contact:

Mr. James Huff

National Institute of Biomedical Imaging and Bioengineering
301-451-4786, Fax: 301-451-5735

Email: huffj@mail.nih.gov
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NATIONAL CANCER INSTITUTE (NCI)

The goal of the National Cancer Institute (NCI) is to improve the current state of care through advances in
cancer research as well as enhancements in the prevention, diagnosis, and treatment of cancer. The
Small Business Innovation Research (SBIR) and Small Business Technology Transfer (STTR) Programs
are NClI's engines of innovation for developing and commercializing novel technologies to better prevent,
diagnose, and treat cancer while enhancing cancer research and control. NCI's SBIR and STTR
Programs offer funding for therapeutic agents and devices, in vitro diagnostics, imaging, cancer
prevention, cancer biology, cancer control and epidemiology, digital health, and many more areas of
interest to the NCI.

NCI's SBIR and STTR programs focus on research, development, and delivery of cancer technologies by
funding small business concerns to conduct innovative research and development. The NCI SBIR
Development Center is committed to helping small business concerns advance promising technologies
towards the marketplace through funding as well as initiatives designed to facilitate external investments
and commercialization. NCI is interested in following the progress of its funded small business concerns
and the products they develop. Funding priority will be given to those small business concerns that show
not only the ability to develop products but also growth towards independence from the SBIR/STTR
programs.

The major NCI SBIR/STTR portfolio areas are listed below as a guide to general technology areas funded
through the program. Applications proposing innovative cancer-related technologies, with strong
commercial potential, that fall outside these topic areas are also invited through this Omnibus solicitation.

Major NCI SBIR/STTR Portfolio Areas:
e Therapeutics (Small Molecules, Biologics, and Cell-based Therapies)
e In Vitro Diagnostics
¢ Imaging Agents and Technologies
e Cancer Control and Digital Health
e Devices for Cancer Therapy
e Tools for Cancer Biology Research

For additional information on high priority technology areas, events, and programmatic initiatives, visit the
NCI SBIR homepage: http://shir.cancer.gov/. In addition, please see the contact list at the end of the NCI
section to identify the Program Director within the NCI SBIR Development Center who specializes in your
technology area.

Limited Amount of Award

For budgetary, administrative, or programmatic reasons, NCI may decide not to fund an application or
may decrease the length of an award and/or the budget recommended by a review committee. Generally,
NCI does not fund Phase | applications greater than $225,000 total costs or project periods greater than 2
years; generally, NCI does not fund Phase Il applications greater than $1,500,000 total costs or project
periods greater than 3 years. Applicants considering a requested budget greater than these limits are
strongly encouraged to contact program staff before submitting an application.
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Phase 1IB SBIR Competing Renewal Awards

The NCI does not accept applications for Phase IIB SBIR competing renewal award through this Omnibus
solicitation. However, the NCI offers Phase IIB opportunities in the form of the NCI SBIR Bridge Award,
which is announced via a separate funding solicitation. The SBIR Bridge Award is designed to support the
next stage of development for previously funded NIH-wide SBIR Phase Il projects in the areas of cancer
therapeutics, imaging technologies, interventional devices, diagnostics and prognostics. The purpose of
this award is to address the funding gap known as the "Valley of Death" between the end of the SBIR
Phase Il award and the subsequent round of financing needed to advance a product or service toward
commercialization. To achieve this goal, the Bridge Award funding opportunity is specifically designed to
incentivize partnerships between NIH's SBIR Phase Il awardees and third-party investors and/or strategic
partners. Competitive preference and funding priority will be given to applicants that demonstrate the
ability to secure substantial independent third-party investor funds (i.e., third-party funds that equal or
exceed the requested NCI funds).

Budgets up to $1 million in total costs per year and project periods up to three years (a total of $3 million
over three years) may be requested from the NCI. Development efforts may include preclinical R&D
needed for regulatory filings (e.g., IND or IDE) and/or clinical trials. NCI intends to commit up to $10M for
up to 10 new awards in FY2014.

To ensure that you will be notified upon the release of the NCI SBIR Bridge Award solicitation, please
sign up for the NCI SBIR mailing list. If you have any questions regarding the Bridge Award, please
contact your Phase Il program director.

For additional information about the NCI SBIR/STTR programs, please contact the NCI SBIR
Development Center:

Small Business Innovation Research (SBIR) Development Center
National Cancer Institute

9609 Medical Center Drive

Rockville, MD 20850

Website: http://sbir.cancer.gov

Email: NClsbir@mail.nih.gov

Phone: 240.276.5300

For additional information on research topics, please contact a Program Officer with the relevant
area of expertise:

Michael Weingarten, MA
Director, NCI SBIR Development Center
Email: weingartenm@mail.nih.gov

Gregory Evans, PhD

Program Director and Team Leader

Email: evansgl@mail.nih.gov

Areas of expertise: Cancer Imaging, Cancer Control, Cancer Biology, Research Tools, and Digital
Health

Andrew Kurtz, PhD

Program Director and Team Leader

Email: kurtza@mail.nih.gov

Areas of expertise: Biologics, Small Molecules, Nanotherapeutics, and Molecular Diagnostics
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Patricia Weber, DrPH

Program Director

Email: weberpa@mail.nih.gov

Areas of expertise: Digital Health, Therapeutics, and Biologics

Xing-Jian Lou, PhD

Program Director

Email: loux@mail.nih.gov

Areas of expertise: In Vitro Diagnostics, Theranostics, Therapeutics, and Bioinformatics

Deepa Narayanan, MS, CCDM

Program Director

Email: deepa.narayanan@mail.nih.gov

Areas of expertise: Cancer Imaging, Radiation Therapy, and Clinical Trials

Amir Rahbar, PhD, MBA

Program Director

Email: amir.rahbar@nih.gov

Areas of expertise: In Vitro Diagnostics, Biologics, Therapeutics and Proteomics

Todd Haim, PhD

Program Director

Email: haimte@mail.nih.gov

Areas of expertise: Small Molecules, Biologics, Inmunotherapeutics, Theranostics, and Cancer
Prevention

Ming Zhao, PhD

Program Director

Email: zhaoming3@mail.nih.gov

Areas of expertise: In Vitro Diagnostics, Therapeutics, Cancer Control & Prevention, Molecular
Imaging, Bioinformatics, and Stem Cells

For administrative and grants management questions, please contact:

Ms. Jacquelyn Boudjeda

Grants Management Specialist

6120 Executive Blvd, Room 243, MSC 7148
Rockville, MD 20892-7148

(301) 496-1204 Fax: 301-496-8662

Email: boudjedaj@mail.nih.gov

For NCl-related SBIR Information, visit: http://sbhir.cancer.gov.

EUNICE KENNEDY SHRIVER NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF CHILD HEALTH AND HUMAN
DEVELOPMENT (NICHD)

The mission of the NICHD is to ensure that every person is born healthy and wanted, that women suffer
no harmful effects from reproductive processes, and that all children have the chance to achieve their full
potential for healthy and productive lives, free from disease or disability, and to ensure the health,
productivity, independence, and well-being of all people through optimal rehabilitation.

For additional information about research areas of scientific interest to the NICHD, please visit our home
page at http://www.nichd.nih.gov.
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Phase 1IB Competing Renewal Awards

NICHD will accept Phase IIB SBIR Competing Renewal grant applications to continue the process of
developing products that require approval of a Federal regulatory agency (e.g., FDA, FCC). Such
products include, but are not limited to: medical implants, pediatric devices, drugs, vaccines, and new
treatment or diagnostic tools that require FDA approval. This renewal grant should allow small businesses
to get to a stage where interest and investment by third parties is more likely. Applicants who received
NICHD SBIR Phase | or Phase Il support and who are currently Phase Il awardees are eligible. Budgets
for Phase IIB renewals should not exceed 3 million dollars total costs for three years. Depending on the
research proposed the amounts may vary each year for the time requested.

You are strongly encouraged to contact Dr. Louis Quatrano or the Program Contact listed at the end of
each topic area before beginning the process of putting a Phase 11B Competing Renewal application
together. Prospective applicants are strongly encouraged to submit to the program contact a letter of
intent that includes the following information:

Descriptive title of the proposed research

Name, address, and telephone number of the Principal Investigator
Names of other key personnel

Participating institutions

Funding Opportunity Announcement Number (e.g., PA-12-XXX)

Although a letter of intent is not required, is not binding, and does not enter into the review of a
subsequent application, the information that it contains allows NIH staff to estimate the potential review
workload and plan the review. It is expected that only a portion of NICHD SBIR/STTR Phase Il awards will
be eligible for a Phase IIB Competing Renewal grant.

Examples of research that would be considered responsive to this announcement are listed below for
illustrative purposes and are not exclusive of other appropriate activities. Preclinical studies, including
pharmacology and toxicology, and other clinical studies beyond those conducted under the initial Phase I
(R44) grants such as:

e innovative assistive devices and techniques to minimize residual disability and to impact on
critical illness, physical behavior and cognitive development in childhood;

e novel assays, kits, and devices to monitor fertility;

e new and improved methods of fertility regulation, for men and for women, that are safe, effective,
inexpensive, reversible, and acceptable;

e new tools to monitor the state of various organ systems during therapy in pregnancy or infancy;
and,

¢ Evaluation of neuroimaging tools specific to brain development in pediatric populations or
individuals with injuries.

NICHD TOPIC AREAS
Child Development and Behavior Branch

Research programs on psychological, social and emotional, psychobiological, and educational
development from conception to maturity, specifically:

e Social and Affective Development, Child Maltreatment and Violence, including normative social,
affective, and personality development and the impact of the physical and social environments on
health and psychological development; investigations of socio-cultural, familial, individual, and
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biological influences on development; and child developmental processes in high-risk settings
(e.g., in violent or abusive environments, or families experiencing stressors such as poverty,
unemployment or parental depression).

e Developmental Cognitive Psychology, Behavioral Neuroscience, and Psychobiology, including
linkages among developing brain, behavior, and genes; developmental pathways leading to
normal and atypical brain development and behaviors and their underlying developmental
mechanisms at the molecular, genetic, cellular and network levels; biological and behavioral
indices of individual differences predictive of development at different points of development;
neuroanatomical, neurofunctional, electrophysiological and neurochemical correlates of
sensorimotor and cognitive abilities; tools to measure these; the effect of hormonal influences on
behavioral development, including the development of gender-specific behaviors, the role of
endocrines in social, emotional, and cognitive development, and the interaction of hormones and
stress-related behaviors during development.

e Risk Prevention and Health Promotion: behavioral and developmental aspects of health risk
behaviors and health promotion from infancy to young adulthood, including individual,
interpersonal, and social factors; environmental and contextual factors; and interactions of genes
and environment as they relate to health and health behaviors. Issues of risk behaviors, health
literacy, adherence, pain, obesity, influence of electronic media, and influences of religiosity and
spirituality are of interest.

e Reading, Writing, and Related Learning Disabilities: relative contributions of environmental,
experiential, instructional, cognitive, linguistic, genetic, and neurobiological factors to the
developmental reading process and to reading disabilities and writing, including the longitudinal
course of development and the interactions among these factors at different stages of reading
development, in both mono- and bilingual individuals; use of technology to facilitate development
of reading and/or writing skills, these technologies could include but are not limited to assistive
technologies, interactive technologies for use by children, adolescent or adult struggling learners
as well as technologies for instructors, parents and/or caregivers for use within or outside of the
classroom context, as appropriate.

e Language and Bilingualism: language development and disorders and second language
acquisition, including studies within a developmental context, that identify and explicate the
cognitive, linguistic, social, cultural, socioenvironmental, geographic, environmental, instructional,
and neurobiological factors affecting the development of language abilities.

o Early Learning and School Readiness: experiences children need from birth to age eight to
prepare them to learn, read, and succeed in school; early interactions with adults and peers; early
childhood education teaching methods and curricula; comprehensive early childhood
interventions that support learning and development; use of technology in promoting school
readiness skills in disadvantaged children from birth to age six, including interactive technologies
for use by parents, child care providers, and teachers and technologies for direct use by children.

e Math and Science Cognition, Learning and Learning Disabilities: mathematical thinking and
problem solving; scientific reasoning, learning, and discovery; studies that explore the genetic
and neurobiological substrates of normal and atypical development in mathematics and science
learning and cognition, as well as cognitive, linguistic, sociocultural, and instructional factors;
individual differences that may moderate achievement; the delineation of skill sets needed to
attain proficiency; development of effective instructional methods for typical development and
interventions for learning disabilities.

e Dr. James Griffin

e 301-435-2307, Fax: 301-480-7773
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e Email:griffinj@mail.nih.gov
Contraceptive Discovery and Development Branch

Emphasis is on developing new and improved methods of fertility regulation as well as research on the
benefits and risks of contraceptive drugs, devices and surgical procedures. Areas of interest include, but
are not limited to:

e Development of new and improved methods of fertility regulation, for men and women, that are
safe, effective, inexpensive, reversible and acceptable.

e Validation and characterization of targets whose modulation may be contraceptive.
e Synthesis and testing of novel chemical compounds that are potential contraceptives.

e Studies relating contraception to STDs such as HIV, including but not limited to development of
new contraceptive products combined with products with microbicidal activity against STDs such
as HIVv.

e Studies to clarify the mechanism of interaction between contraception and other disease
processes or conditions.

Dr. Steven Kaufman
301-435-6989, Fax: 301-480-1972
Email: Kaufmans@exchange.nih.gov

Developmental Biology and Structural Variation Branch

Biomedical research on the cellular, molecular, and genetic aspects of normal and aberrant embryonic
and fetal development including early embryogenesis, organogenesis, limb regeneration, development of
the nervous system, and causative factors in teratogenesis. Areas of interest include but are not limited
to:

development and application of new animal model systems
e innovative and high throughput genomic and proteomic techniques

e technologies to facilitate and advance systems biology approaches to the study of embryonic
development and structural birth defects

e invivo techniques for optical imaging and quantitative measurement of physical properties of
cells/tissues

e innovative technologies for imaging of developmental processes and gene expression

Dr. Lorette Javois
301-496-5541, Fax: 301-480-0303
Email: 1j89j@mail.nih.gov

Fertility and Infertility Branch

Research on the reproductive processes of men and women and of animals with similar reproductive
systems related to developing safer and more effective means of regulating, preserving or achieving
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fertility. Particular areas of programmatic interest relative to small business initiatives include, but are not
limited to:

Development of reagents to facilitate study of reproductive and developmental processes.

Development of improved methods of growing and differentiating stem cell lines in vitro, including
feeder cell-free approaches.

Development of novel assays, kits, and devices to monitor fertility and treat infertility and
gynecological disorders.

Use of genomics and proteomics to develop novel diagnostics and treatments for reproductive
diseases and disorders.

Development of high resolution technologies to provide invasive or noninvasive assessments of
reproductive and developmental competence.

Development of experimental animal models that would be useful for studying the physiology and
pathophysiology of reproductive processes.

Development of improved and novel technologies for the preservation of human gametes.
Development of improved technologies for preimplantation genetic diagnosis.

Development of improved technologies for the reprogramming of cells, including embryonic stem
cells or adult cells, into eggs and sperm.

Dr. Stuart Moss
301-435-6979, Fax: 301-496-0962
Email: mossstua@mail.nih.gov

Gynecologic Health and Disease Branch

Emphasis is on biomedical research on gynecologic health issues in women and adolescent girls. Areas
of research include pelvic floor disorders, the menstrual cycle, uterine fibroids, endometriosis, the
perimenopause/menopause, chronic pelvic pain, vulvodynia and dysmenorrhea. Areas of interest include,
but are not limited to:

Developing new and improved diagnostic approaches and treatments for female pelvic floor
disorders, including drugs, graft materials, and devices used for non-surgical and surgical
treatment of pelvic organ prolapse, urinary incontinence, and other female pelvic floor disorders.

Development of new diagnostic approaches and treatments for uterine fibroids, endometriosis,
abnormalities of the menstrual cycle and symptoms associated with the
perimenopause/menopausal transition.

Research on mechanisms, diagnosis and treatment of gynecologic pain disorders including
chronic pelvic pain, vulvodynia and dysmenorrhea.

Dr. Estella Parrott
Phone: 301-435-6971 Fax: 301-480-1972
Email: parrotte@mail.nih.gov
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Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Branch

Emphasis is on studies related to intellectual and developmental disabilities (IDD), including common and
rare neuromuscular and neurodevelopmental disorders, such as Down, Fragile X, and Rett syndromes,
inborn errors of metabolism, autism spectrum disorders, and others. Areas of interest include, but are not
limited to:

e Studies designed to understand the etiology and pathophysiology of abnormal nervous system
development

e Studies designed to delineate genetic, genomic, and epigenetic bases of IDD

e Studies designed to examine the screening, diagnosis, treatment, and management of IDD and
other conditions identified by newborn screening or other screening methods

¢ Studies that promote multidisciplinary and translational research in IDD through programs that
integrate basic and applied research, training, and service activities

e Studies that advance efforts toward the prevention and diagnosis of IDD as well as early
intervention and treatment for these conditions.

Dr. Tiina K. Urv
301-402-7015, Fax: 301-496-3791
Email: urvtin@mail.nih.gov

Maternal and Pediatric Infectious Disease Branch

Domestic and international research on human immunodeficiency virus (HIV)/acquired immune deficiency
syndrome (AIDS) and related infections (such as tuberculosis, hepatitis and malaria) in women of child
bearing age, pregnant women, mothers, fetuses, infants, children and adolescents. Specific areas of
interest include but are not limited to epidemiology, clinical manifestations, pathogenesis, transmission,
treatment and prevention (including vaccines and other biomedical modalities) of HIV infection and other
infectious diseases in children, adolescents and pregnant women, including prevention of mother to child
transmission of HIV and other congenital infections, and HIV-related and other infectious-disease related
complications in these populations. Additional areas of interest include:

e New technologies relevant to resource-limited countries for:
o diagnosis of HIV infection and other infectious diseases in infants;

o diagnosis and treatment of HIV-related complications of HIV (e.g., diagnosis of tuberculosis in
children);

o simple and less technical point of care assays to monitor CD4 cell percentage/count, HIV
viral load, or other surrogate markers of HIV disease progression in children.

e Drug formulations for antiretroviral drugs and/or drugs used to treat complications of HIV infection
such as tuberculosis, hepatitis, and malaria relevant to children (preferably not liquid
preparations), particularly in resource-limited countries and including fixed dose drug formulations
and innovative methodologies for development of solid formulations capable of being
administered to young children (e.g., sustained release beads, etc).

e Innovative long-lasting drug formulations for antiretroviral and other anti-infective drugs that would
allow less frequent drug administration (e.g., once daily, weekly or monthly).
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e Simple, standardized tools to evaluate neurodevelopmental outcome in children in resource-
limited settings.

e Biomedical modalities, including vaccines, to prevent acquisition of HIV and other infectious
diseases in children, adolescents and women.

e Topical microbicide agents to prevent sexual acquisition of HIV and other STDs in women or in
adolescents.

e New, non-invasive technologies to evaluate complications of antiretroviral drugs in HIV-infected
infants, children, adolescents (e.g., mitochondrial toxicity) and pregnant women, their fetuses and
children.

Dr. Lynne Mofenson
301-435-6870; Fax: 301-496-8678
Email: LM65D@nih.gov

Obstetric and Pediatric Pharmacology and Therapeutics Branch

The OPP Branch promotes research to improve the safety and efficacy of pharmaceuticals and to ensure
centralization and coordination of research, clinical trials, and drug development activities for obstetric
and pediatric populations. This includes developing 